
COUNTY OF SULLIVAN INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
548 Broadway 

Monticello, New York 12701 
(845) 428-7575 - Voice 
(845) 428-7577 - Fax 
www.sullivanida.com 

TTY 711 
 

MEETING NOTICE 
 
 
TO:  Ira Steingart, IDA Chairman 
  Suzanne Loughlin, IDA Vice Chair 
  Howard Siegel, IDA Treasurer & Chief Financial Officer 

Edward Sykes, IDA Assistant Secretary & Chief Executive Officer 
Scott Smith, IDA Assistant Treasurer 

  Paul Guenther, IDA Member 
  Joseph Perrello, IDA Member 

Carol Roig, IDA Member 
  Chairman and Members of the Sullivan County Legislature 
  Josh Potosek, Sullivan County Manager 
  Walter Garigliano, Esq., IDA Counsel 
   
FROM:  Jennifer Flad, Executive Director 
 
DATE:  March 3, 2020 
 
 
 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that there will be a Regular Meeting of the County of Sullivan Industrial 
Development Agency scheduled as follows: 
 
 DATE:   March 9, 2020 - Monday 
 TIME:   11:00 AM 

LOCATION: Legislative Committee Room 
 Sullivan County Government Center 
 100 North Street 
 Monticello, New York 12701 
 

 
***Please See Page 2 Below For Agenda*** 

http://www.sullivanida.com/


COUNTY OF SULLIVAN INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
548 Broadway 

Monticello, New York 12701 
(845) 428-7575 – Voice 

(845) 428-7577 - Fax 
www.sullivanida.com 

TTY 711 
 

MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, March 9, 2020, 11:00 AM 

Legislative Committee Room 
Sullivan County Government Center 

100 North Street 
Monticello, New York 12701 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
II. ROLL CALL 
III. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 

February 10, 2020 Regular Meeting, February 20, 2020 Special Meeting 
IV. BILLS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
V. STAFF REPORT 
VI. OLD BUSINESS 

None 

VII. NEW BUSINESS 
Discussion and Approval: Opening New Agency Bank Accounts 
 

Resolution: Authorizing and Approving the First Quarter 2020 Payment to the Partnership for 
Economic Development in Sullivan County, Inc. 
Resolution: Approving the Psychedelic Solar LLC Project 
Resolution: Approving the Rosemond Solar, LLC Project 
Resolution: Extending the Sales Tax Abatement Period for the Sullivan Resorts, LLC Project 
Through and Including September 30, 2020 
Resolution: Extending the Sales Tax Abatement Period for the Veria Lifestyle Inc. Project 
Through and Including September 30, 2020 
Discussion: Reduction of Full-Time Employment Goal for the Doetsch Family III LLC Project 
Discussion: Suspension of Full-Time Employment Goal for the Veria Lifestyle, Inc. Project 
Review and Approval: Agency Procurement Policy, Investment Policy, and Property Disposal 
Policy 
Review and Approval: Agency Mission Statement and Performance Measurements 
Discussion: Board Self-Evaluation (in Closed Session if Desired) 
Any and All Other Business Before the Board  

VIII. ADJOURN  
## 

http://www.sullivanida.com/


 
COUNTY OF SULLIVAN INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

548 Broadway 
Monticello, New York 12701 

Tel: (845) 428-7575 
Fax: (845) 428-7577 

TTY 711 
www.sullivanida.com  

 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, February 10, 2020 

 
I.     CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Steingart called to order the regular meeting of the County of Sullivan Industrial 
Development Agency at approximately 11:05 AM in the Legislative Committee Room at the Sullivan 
County Government Center, 100 North Street, Monticello, NY 12701. 
 

II.      ROLL CALL 
Members Present-                       Members Absent- 
Ira Steingart     Suzanne Loughlin    
Edward Sykes     Howard Siegel 
Joseph Perrello     Scott Smith   
Carol Roig 
Paul Guenther  
                      
Staff Present-                               Staff Absent- 
Jennifer Flad, Executive Director   
Julio Garaicoechea, Project Manager 
 
Others Present- 
Walter Garigliano, Agency Counsel 
Robert Doherty, Sullivan County Legislature 
George Conklin, Sullivan County Legislature 
Robert Danzy, Authorities Budget Office 
Thierry Demoly, Authorities Budget Office 
Patricio Robayo, Sullivan County Democrat 
Ken Walter 

 
III. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 

On a motion made by Mr. Siegel and seconded by Mr. Guenther, the Board voted and the minutes 
of the January 13, 2020 regular meeting was unanimously approved. 
 

IV.  BILLS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
Ms. Flad distributed a revised schedule of payments.  On a motion made by Mr.  and seconded by Mr. 
Guenther, the Board voted and the revised schedule of payments was unanimously approved. 
 

V. STAFF REPORT 
 There were no questions on the staff report. 
 
 
VI. OLD BUSINESS 
 None. 
 

http://www.sullivanida.com/


 
VII. NEW BUSINESS 

On a motion made by Mr. Guenther and seconded by Mr. Perrello, the Board voted and 
unanimously approved a resolution authorizing an amended Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement 
relating to the Amytra Development LLC, Eldred Entertainment LLC, and Eldred Hospitality LLC 
project.  
 
On a motion made by Mr. Guenther, and seconded by Ms. Roig, the Board voted and unanimously 
adopted a resolution authorizing an amended Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement relating to the 
Catskill Hospitality Holding LLC and Catskill Hospitality Operating LLC project.  
 
On a motion made by Mr. Guenther, and seconded by Ms. Roig, the Board discussed a resolution 
extending the sales tax abatement period for the Forestburgh Property LLC and Forestburgh 
Hospitality LLC project through and including June 30, 2020.  The Board voted, and the resolution 
failed with a roll call vote which resulted as follows: 
 

 

Ira Steingart 
Suzanne Loughlin 

[ √ ] Yes 
[    ] Yes 

[ 
[ 

] No 
] No 

[    ] Absent 
[ √ ] Absent 

[ 
[ 

] Abstain 
] Abstain 

Edward T. Sykes [ √ ] Yes [ ] No [    ] Absent [ ] Abstain 
Howard Siegel [    ] Yes [ ] No [ √ ] Absent [ ] Abstain 
Scott Smith [    ] Yes [ ] No [ √ ] Absent [ ] Abstain 
Paul Guenther [ √ ] Yes [ ] No [    ] Absent [ ] Abstain 
Joseph Perrello [    ] Yes [ √ ] No [    ] Absent [ ] Abstain 
Carol Roig [ √ ] Yes [ ] No [    ] Absent [ ] Abstain 

On a motion made by Mr. Steingart, and seconded by Ms. Roig, the Board voted and unanimously 
adopted a resolution extending the Sales Tax Abatement Period for the Empire Resorts Real Estate 
II LLC project through and including August 31, 2020.  

 
VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 The Board recognized the comments of Ken Walter. 
 
IX. NEW BUSINESS (continued) 

Chairman Steingart called for a Special Meeting to be held on Thursday, February 20th at 3:00PM in 
the Legislative Committee Room at the Sullivan County Government Center, 100 North Street, 
Monticello, NY 12701. 
 

Mr. Perrello made a motion to enter Closed Attorney-
Client Privilege session to seek legal advice related to the 
Catskill Distilling Company Ltd. project. Ms. Roig seconded 
the motion and the Board entered Closed Session at 
approximately 11:14AM.  
 
Ms. Roig made a motion to exit Closed Session. Mr. 
Steingart seconded the motion and the Board exited 
Closed Session at approximately 12:26PM.  

 
X.  ADJOURNMENT 

On a motion made by Mr. Guenther and seconded by Mr. Perrello, the meeting was adjourned at 
approximately 12:27PM.   
 
Respectfully submitted: 



 
Julio Garaicoechea, Project Manager 
## 

 



 
COUNTY OF SULLIVAN INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

548 Broadway 
Monticello, New York 12701 

Tel: (845) 428-7575 
Fax: (845) 428-7577 

TTY 711 
www.sullivanida.com  

 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
Thursday, February 20, 2020 

 
I.     CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Steingart called to order the special meeting of the County of Sullivan Industrial 
Development Agency at approximately 4:07 PM in the Legislative Committee Room at the Sullivan 
County Government Center, 100 North Street, Monticello, NY 12701. 
 

II.      ROLL CALL 
Members Present-                       Members Absent- 
Ira Steingart     Scott Smith 
Howard Siegel     Paul Guenther    
Edward Sykes      
Joseph Perrello        
Carol Roig 
Suzanne Loughlin  
                      
Staff Present-                               Staff Absent- 
Jennifer Flad, Executive Director   
Julio Garaicoechea, Project Manager 
 
Others Present- 
Walter Garigliano, Agency Counsel 
Robert Doherty, Sullivan County Legislature 
Patricio Robayo, Sullivan County Democrat 

 
III. NEW BUSINESS 

On a motion made by Mr. Siegel and seconded by Ms. Roig, the Board discussed a resolution 
extending the sales tax abatement period for the Forestburgh Property LLC and Forestburgh 
Hospitality LLC project nunc pro tunc from January 1, 2020 through and including June 30, 2020. 
The Board voted, and the resolution was approved with a roll call vote which resulted as follows:
  

Ira Steingart 
Suzanne Loughlin 

[ √ ] Yes 
[ √ ] Yes 

[ 
[ 

] No 
] No 

[    ] Absent 
[    ] Absent 

[ 
[ 

] Abstain 
] Abstain 

Edward T. Sykes [ √ ] Yes [ ] No [    ] Absent [ ] Abstain 
Howard Siegel [ √ ] Yes [ ] No [    ] Absent [ ] Abstain 
Scott Smith [    ] Yes [ ] No [ √ ] Absent [ ] Abstain 
Paul Guenther [    ] Yes [ ] No [ √ ] Absent [ ] Abstain 
Joseph Perrello [    ] Yes [ √ ] No [    ] Absent [ ] Abstain 
Carol Roig [ √ ] Yes [ ] No [    ] Absent [ ] Abstain 

 
 

http://www.sullivanida.com/


 
Mr. Perrello made a motion to enter Closed Attorney-
Client Privilege session to seek legal advice related to 
projects in default. Ms. Roig seconded the motion and the 
Board entered Closed Session at approximately 4:08PM.  
 
Mr. Siegel made a motion to exit Closed Session. Mr. 
Perrello seconded the motion and the Board exited Closed 
Session at approximately 4:36PM.  

 
On a motion made by Mr. Perrello and seconded by Ms. Roig, the Board discussed and approved a 
resolution authorizing a second amendment to the Amended and Restated Payment In Lieu Of 
Taxation Agreement related to the RHH Land project. Ms. Loughlin recused from the discussion and 
vote because her husband is of counsel to the law firm that represents the Company.  
 

IV.  ADJOURNMENT 
On a motion made by Mr. Sykes and seconded by Mr. Siegel, the meeting was adjourned at 
approximately 4:43PM.   
 
Respectfully submitted: 
Julio Garaicoechea, Project Manager 
## 

 



Vendor Description Amount
Callicoon Co-Operative Ins. Co. Inland Marine Policy Premium- Catskill Distilling Co. Ltd. 2,139.00$               
Cardmember Service Adobe Acrobat Subscription 16.19$                    
Kristt Kelly Office Systems Corp. Office Supplies 113.32$                  
Garigliano Law Offices Retainer March 2020 250.00$                  
Garigliano Law Offices Sales Tax Extension Legal Fees: Sullivan Resorts, LLC; Veria Lifestyle, 

Inc. 500.00$                  
New Southern Tier Title Agency LLC April 2020 Office Rent 2,700.00$               
Sullivan County Democrat Legal Notice- Seminary Hill Equipment Bid Notice 59.15$                    
RBT CPAs, LLP Interim Billing- 2019 Audited Financial Statement 7,500.00$               
Time Warner Cable Service 2/1/20 - 2/29/20 219.95$                  
USDA Rural Development RMAP Loan Repayment - March 2020 2,370.41$               
Wilson Elser Moskowitz Edelman & 
Dicker LLP Legal Services re: Catskill Distilling Co. Ltd. January 2020 5,744.51$               
TOTAL 21,612.53$             

_________________________________ 3/9/2020
Signature Date

Vendor Description Amount
Prospero Equipment Corporation Equipment Procurement re: Seminary Hill FY 2018 RBDG (approved by 

Board resolution 07-18, 3/12/18) 11,998.50$             
TOTAL 11,998.50$             

Vendor Description Amount
Francotyp Postalia Postage for Postage Meter 2/10/20 200.00$                  
Payroll Expenses Payroll Check Dates: 2/14/20, 2/28/20 14,853.44$             

Paydata 2019 W-2 Processing and Delivery Fee 96.25$                    
Paydata Payroll Services Inc. 2019 1099M Processing and Delivery Fee 125.00$                  
Middletown Medical PC Return of Excess Sales Tax Escrow 4,716.68$               
TOTAL 19,991.37$             

Other Expenses and Items Paid Since Last Regular Meeting (2/10/20)—no approval required

COUNTY OF SULLIVAN INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
548 Broadway, Monticello, NY 12701

845-428-7575
SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS AS OF MARCH 3, 2020

I certify that the payments listed above were audited by the Board of the IDA on March 9, 2020 and allowed in the amounts shown.  You are 
hereby authorized and directed to pay each of the claimants in the amount opposite its name.

Expenses Approved and Paid Since Last Regular Meeting (2/10/20)

continued on next page



Payee Description Amount

County of Sullivan 457 Equities; Regency Manor; Amytra; Catskill Hospitality; Jam Two; Deb 
El; Sullivan Resorts; Center One; Center for Discovery; Mogenavland; 
Canopy Liberty; Montreign; Empire Resorts Real Estate I; Empire Resorts 
Real Estate II; Rock Meadow; Loughlin & Billig; Be Neet/ Jeff Sanitation; 
Pestech; Kohl's; Peck's; MetCar; HUDSUT & HVFG; BRR Brothers/ 
Sullivan County Fabrication; Kaufman; Madasa; Turtlehead; NY Delaware 
I; NY Thompson II; Addenbrooke; SPT IVEY; Tiv Leivov; NY Delaware 
II;  Veria Infrastructure; Veria Wellness Center; Sullivan Property 
Acquisitions I; Beaverkill Studio; NY Thompson I; NY Liberty I

1,089,384.02$        

Town of Bethel Jam Two; Mogenavland; HUDSUT & HVFG 15,667.07$             
Town of Callicoon Peck's 3,094.03$               
Village of Jeffersonville Peck's 2,904.53$               
Town of Delaware Be Neet/ Jeff Sanitation; NY Delaware I; NY Delaware II 11,222.24$             
Town of Fallsburg Center One; Center for Discovery; MetCar; BRR Brothers/ SC Fabrication; 

Madasa
20,713.18$             

Village of Woodridge Center One 8,765.19$               
Town of Highland Amytra 5,678.28$               
Town of Liberty Sullivan Resorts; Canopy Liberty; Pestech; Addenbrooke; Beaverkill 

Studio; NY Liberty I
74,309.46$             

Village of Liberty Sullivan Resorts; Addenbrooke 15,787.99$             
Town of Mamakating Kohl's; Tiv Leivov 73,458.53$             
Village of Bloomingburg Tiv Leivov 424.20$                  
Town of Thompson 457 Equities; Regency Manor; Catskill Hospitality; Deb El; Montreign; 

Empire Resorts Real Estate I; Empire Resorts Real Estate II; Loughlin & 
Billig; Kaufman; Turtlehead; NY Thompson II; SPT IVEY; Veria 
Infrastructure; Veria Wellness Center; Sullivan Property Acquisition I; NY 
Thompson I

355,774.00$           

Village of Monticello 457 Equities; Regency Manor; Loughlin & Billig; Kaufman; Sullivan 
Property Acquisitions I

45,250.59$             

Town of Tusten Mogenavland; Rock Meadow 7,174.96$               
Eldred Central School Amytra 16,672.53$             
Sunshine Hall Free Library Amytra 23.76$                    
Ellenville Central School Kohl's 352,962.55$           
Ellenville Library Kohl's 13,771.06$             

Fallsburg Central School Center One; Center for Discovery; BRR Brothers/ Sullivan County 
Fabrication; Madasa

56,917.36$             

Fallsburg Library Center One; Center for Discovery; BRR Brothers/ Sullivan County 
Fabrication; Madasa

1,214.44$               

Liberty Central School Jam Two; Sullivan Resorts; Canopy Liberty; Pestech; HUDSUT & HVFG; 
Addenbrooke; Beaverkill Studio; NY Liberty I

256,277.90$           

Liberty Public Library Jam Two; Sullivan Resorts; Canopy Liberty; Pestech; HUDSUT & HVFG; 
Addenbrooke; Beaverkill Studio; NY Liberty I

6,787.57$               

Monticello Central School 457 Equities; Regency Manor; Catskill Hospitality; Deb El; Mogenavland; 
Montreign; Empire Resorts Real Estate I; Empire Resorts Real Estate II; 
Loughlin & Billig; MetCar; Kaufman; Turtlehead; NY Thompson II; SPT 
IVEY; Veria Infrastructure; Veria Wellness Center; Sullivan Property 
Acquisitions I; NY Thompson I

1,756,659.87$        

Pine Bush Central School Tiv Leivov 5,185.26$               

Sullivan West Central School Mogenavland; Rock Meadow; Be Neet/ Jeff Sanitation; Peck's; NY 
Delaware I; NY Delaware II

51,423.22$             

Western Sullivan Public Library Mogenavland; Rock Meadow; Be Neet/ Jeff Sanitation; Peck's; NY 
Delaware I; NY Delaware II

2,453.19$               

TOTAL 4,249,956.98$        

PILOT Payments Distributed Since Last Regular Meeting (2/10/20)



ACTIVITY REPORT – FEBRUARY 2020 
COUNTY OF SULLIVAN INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, SULLIVAN COUNTY 

FUNDING CORPORATION, THE SULLIVAN COUNTY INFRASTRUCTURE LOCAL 
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

 

March 2, 2020 
 
At its regular Board meeting on February 10, the County of Sullivan Industrial Development 
Agency (IDA) authorized the amendment of the Payment in Lieu of Tax (PILOT) Agreements 
with the Amytra Development LLC Project, for the development of a tourism facility at the 
site of the former Eldred Preserve in the Town of Highland, and the Catskill Hospitality 
Project, for the development of a hotel in the Town of Thompson.  These amendments adjust 
the PILOT payment schedule to align with the construction schedules and anticipated 
completion dates for the two projects.  It is anticipated that the Amytra Project will be 
complete in the summer of 2020 and the Catskill Hospitality Project will be complete by the 
end of 2020.   
 
The IDA Board also held a special meeting on February 20.  At this time the Board adopted a 
resolution extending the sales tax abatement period for the Forestburgh Property LLC and 
Forestburgh Hospitality LLC Project, for the development of a luxury camping facility in the 
Town of Forestburgh.  The Board also authorized an amendment to the PILOT Agreement 
for the RHH Land Project, related to the Ramada Inn in Rock Hill.  The PILOT amendment 
establishes an escrow account to secure payment of the Company’s 2020 and future PILOT 
obligations. 
 
As of this writing the IDA has collected over $6,500,000 in PILOT payments from our 
projects, and we have distributed these funds to the taxing jurisdictions.  We plan to 
distribute an additional $400,000 this week. 
 
During February staff continued to assist RBT CPAs, LLP as they conduct the annual audits of 
the IDA, Sullivan County Funding Corporation (SCFC), and The Sullivan County 
Infrastructure Local Development Corporation (TSCILDC).  We expect to receive draft audit 
reports in the coming days. 
 
We have also continued to assist reviewers from the NYS Authorities Budget Office, as they 
move forward in their review of economic development in Sullivan County.   
 
In March the IDA, SCFC, and TSCILDC will conduct annual business as required by the New 
York State Public Authorities Law.  This includes review of the agencies’ mission statements 
and policies, Board member self-evaluations, and review and approval of various annual 
reports to be submitted to the NYS Authorities Budget Office.  Staff is working to prepare all 
documents and information for review at the upcoming March 9 Board meetings. 

## 



 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

A regular meeting of the County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency (“Agency”) 
was convened in public session on March 9, 2020, at 11:00 a.m., local time, at the Sullivan County 
Government Center, 100 North Street, Monticello, New York 12701. 

 
 The meeting was called to order by Chairman Ira Steingart, and, upon roll being called, the 
following members of the Agency were: 
 
     PRESENT  ABSENT 
  
 Ira Steingart   [     ]  [     ] 
 Suzanne Loughlin  [     ]  [     ] 
 Edward T. Sykes  [     ]  [     ] 
 Howard Siegel   [     ]  [     ] 
 Scott Smith   [     ]  [     ] 
 Paul Guenther                         [     ]  [     ] 
 Joseph Perrello  [     ]  [     ] 
 Carol Roig   [     ]  [     ] 
  
 The following persons were also present: 
 
 Jennifer M. Flad, Executive Director 
 Edward T. Sykes, Chief Executive Officer 
 Julio Garaicoechea, Project Manager 
 Walter F. Garigliano, Agency General Counsel 
        
 The following resolution was duly offered by ___________________________, and 
seconded by ___________________________________, to wit: 
 
 Resolution No. ___ - 20 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE AGENCY TO PROVIDE FUNDING TO 
THE PARTNERSHIP FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT IN SULLIVAN 
COUNTY, INC. FOR THE FIRST QUARTER OF 2020 

 
 WHEREAS, the Agency was created by Chapter 560 of the Laws of 1970 of the State of 
New York, as amended, pursuant to Title I of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the 
State of New York (collectively, the "Act") as a body corporate and politic and as a public benefit 
corporation of the State of New York; and  
 
 WHEREAS, since 1995, the Agency has provided payments for services to the Partnership 
for Economic Development in Sullivan County, Inc. ("Partnership"); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency contemplates providing a payment for services to the Partnership 



 

 

for the first quarter of 2020 in the amount of EIGHTEEN THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED 
FIFTY AND 00/100 ($18,750.00) Dollars. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE AGENCY AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  The Agency is hereby authorized to make provision for the funding to the 

Partnership for the first calendar quarter of 2020 in the amount of 
EIGHTEEN THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED FIFTY AND 00/100 
($18,750.00) Dollars. 

 
 Section 2.  The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized 

and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts 
and things required and to execute and deliver all such certificates, 
instruments, documents, and to pay all such fees, charges and expenses and 
to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or in the opinion 
of the officer, employee or agent acting on behalf of the Agency desirable 
and proper to effect the purposes of the foregoing resolutions and to cause 
compliance by the Agency with all the terms, covenants and provisions of 
the documents for and on behalf of the Agency. 

 
 Section 3.  These resolutions shall take effect immediately. 
 
 The question of adoption of the foregoing resolutions were duly put to a vote on roll call, 
which resulted as follows: 
  
 Ira Steingart   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Suzanne Loughlin  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Edward T. Sykes  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Howard Siegel   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Scott Smith   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Paul Guenther   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Joseph Perrello  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Carol Roig   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
  
 The resolutions were thereupon duly adopted. 
  



 

 

STATE OF NEW YORK : 
    :ss.: 
COUNTY OF SULLIVAN : 
 
 I, the undersigned Secretary (Assistant) of the County of Sullivan Industrial Development 
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT: 
 
1. I have compared the foregoing copy of a resolution of the County of Sullivan Industrial 

Development Agency (“Agency”) with the original thereof on file in the office of the 
Agency, and that the same is a true and correct copy of such resolution and of the 
proceedings of the Agency in connection with such matter. 

 
2. Such resolution was passed at a meeting of the Agency duly convened in public session on 

the 9th day of March, 2020 at 11:00 a.m. at the Sullivan County Government Center, 100 
North Street, Village of Monticello, Sullivan County, New York, at which the following 
members were present: 

 
     PRESENT  ABSENT 
  
 Ira Steingart   [     ]  [     ] 
 Suzanne Loughlin  [     ]  [     ] 
 Edward T. Sykes  [     ]  [     ] 
 Howard Siegel   [     ]  [     ] 
 Scott Smith   [     ]  [     ] 
 Paul Guenther                         [     ]  [     ] 
 Joseph Perrello  [     ]  [     ] 
 Carol Roig   [     ]  [     ] 
 
3. The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call 
 which resulted as follows: 
 
 Ira Steingart   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Suzanne Loughlin  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Edward T. Sykes  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Howard Siegel   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Scott Smith   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Paul Guenther   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Joseph Perrello  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Carol Roig   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 
  
 and therefore, the resolution was declared duly adopted. 
60400-007



 

 

 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice of said meeting, 
(ii) pursuant to Sections 103a and 104 of the Public Officers Law, said meeting was open to the 
general public and public notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance 
with such Sections 103a and 104, (iii) the meeting in all respects was duly held, and (iv) there was 
a quorum present throughout.   
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal on the 9th day of March, 
2020. 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
                   Secretary   
                    



COUNTY OF SULLIVAN INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
548 Broadway 

Monticello, New York 12701 
845-428-7575

APPLICATION FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

I. APPLICANT INFORMATION:

Company Name: Psychedelic Solar LLC___________________________________ 

Address: 400 Market Industrial Park Suite 32, Wappingers Fall NY,12590___ 

Phone No.:  845-473-0300__________________________________________

Telefax No.:  914-729-1039__________________________________________

Email Address:  Jim.Falsetti@BQEnergy.com______________________________ 

Fed Id. No.:  84-2568453____________________________________________

Contact Person: _James Falsetti________________________________________ 

Principal Owners/Officers/Directors (list owners with 15% or more in equity holdings 
with percentage ownership): 

Principal Owners (Shareholders/Members/Owners): ____________________________ 
___BQ Energy Development, LLC__________________________________________ 
Directors/Managers: __Paul Curran, James Falsetti, Tim Ryan____________________ 
Officers:_______________________________________________________________ 

Corporate Structure (attach schematic if Applicant is a subsidiary or otherwise affiliated 
with another entity) 

Form of Entity:  

_____ Corporation (Sub-s) 

Date of incorporation: ___________________________ 
State of incorporation: ___________________________ 

_____ Partnership 

General _________________ or Limited ____________ 

No changes to this page-2/5/2020

mailto:marcushenley@hotmail.com


Number of general partners __________ 
If applicable, number of limited partners _________ 
Date of formation: ______________ 
Jurisdiction formation: ______________ 

_X____ Limited Liability Company/Partnership (number of members _1___) 

Date of organization: _7/25/2019_____________ 
State of organization: _New York_____________ 

_____ Sole Proprietorship 

If a foreign organization, is the Applicant authorized to do business in the State of New 
York?  Yes          No    N/A  X ___   (If so, please append Certificate of Authority.) 

APPLICANT’S COUNSEL 

Name:    ___Milan Tyler______________________________________________ 

Address: ____340 Madison Ave, 17th Floor, New York, NY 10173-1922__________ 

Phone No.: ____516-742-5201____________________________________________ 

Telefax No.: ____212-308-9079____________________________________________ 

Email Address:_____mtyler@phillipslytle.com_________________________________ 

II. REQUESTED FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
Estimated Value 

 Real Property Tax Abatement (estimated)  $__TBD_______ 
  Mortgage Tax Exemption  $   53,109.12___ 
  Sales and Use Tax Exemption $__35,000_____ 
  Issuance by the Agency of Tax Exempt Bonds $___0________ 

--------------Not to exceed $54,0001



III. PROJECT INFORMATION

A.)  Project Location: 

Project Address: _608-636 Old White Lake Turnpike, Swan Lake NY______       
Tax Map Number(s): _18.-1-26.1; 18.-1-25.2_____________________________ 
Located in the Village of: __N/A_______________________________________ 
Located in Town of: __Bethel_________________________________________ 
Located in the School District of: Liberty Central School District______________ 
Located in Hamlet of __N/A__________________________________________ 

(i) Are Utilities on Site?

Water/Sewer  ___ Electric _X___      
Gas ___ Storm Sewer ____ 

(ii) Present legal owner of the site: _Town of Bethel_______________________

If other than Applicant, by what means will the site be acquired for this Project: 
___________________________________________________________ 

(iii) Proposed:  No change___ 

(iv) Are any variances needed:       No ___

(v) Principal Use of Project upon completion:_
Project will be a fixed tilt ground mounted ballasted solar system which will
deliver electricity to NYSEG’s grid. The project will be 2.7 MW
AC/4.3MWDC and will generate revenue by selling VDER (Value of
Distributed Energy Resources) credits to homes and small businesses with
NYSEG electricity accounts. _________________________

________________________________________________________________ 

B.)  Will the Project result in the removal of a plant or facility of the Applicant or a 
proposed Project occupant from one area of the State of New York to another area 
of the State of New York? _No______________;   If yes, please explain: 

________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________ 

C.)  Will the Project result in the abandonment of one or more Plants or facilities of the 
Applicant or a proposed Project occupant located in the State of New York? 
__No________;  If yes, please explain:  

________________________________________________________________

Zoning of Project Site: Current: _RD 
per Bethel Building Dept.

A detailed map has been attached to this application. It is best viewed in 24x36 format, 
names Attachment 4- Bethel_IDA_Application_Supporting Docs4_Site Plan. 



________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________ 

D.) If the answer to either question B or C above is yes, you are required to indicate 
whether any of the following apply to the Project: 

N/A 
1. Is the Project reasonably necessary to preserve the competitive position of the

Applicant or such Project Occupant in its industry?  Yes ______; No ________.
If yes, please explain:

______________________________________________________________

2. Is the Project reasonably necessary to discourage the Applicant or such Project
Occupant from removing such other plant or facility to a location outside the
State of New York?  Yes ______; No ______.  If yes, please explain:

______________________________________________________________

E.)  Will the Project include facilities or property that will be primarily used in making 
retail sales of goods or provide services to customers who personally visit such 
facilities?  __No____; If yes, please contact the Agency for additional information. 

F.) Please provide a narrative of the Project and the purpose of the Project (new build, 
renovations, and/or all equipment purchases).  Identify specific uses occurring 
within the Project.  Describe any and all tenants and any/all end users. Describe 
the proposed acquisitions, construction or reconstruction and a description of the 
costs and expenditures expected.  Attach additional sheets, if necessary. 

Project will be a fixed tilt ground mounted ballasted solar system which will 
deliver electricity to NYSEG’s grid, and located on the Town’s closed landfill and 
soon be to closed gravel mine.  The project will be 2.7 MWAC/4.3MWDC and will 
generate revenue by selling VDER (Value of Distributed Energy Resources) 
credits to homes and small businesses with NYSEG electricity accounts. 
Subscribers will purchase credits at a fixed discount to their value. Residents of 
the Town of Bethel will receive a 12% discount, while everyone else will receive a 
10% discount. The Project will also pay rent to the Town of Bethel. The project 
received a Negative Declaration through the SEQRA process from the Town of 
Bethel Planning Board. The IDA was listed as a concerned agency at that time. 
We have attached the EAF application and the Negative Declaration to this 
application as Attachment 1.   



G.) COSTS AND BENEFITS OF THE PROJECT 

Costs = Financial Assistance 

Estimated Sales Tax Exemption $___35,000__________________   

Estimated Mortgage Tax Exemption $_  _ 53,109.12_______________ 
Estimated Property Tax Abatement $_____TBD__________________   
Estimated Interest Savings IRB Issue  $_________0____________   

Benefits= Economic Development 

Jobs created* $ 
Jobs retained $ _0_ 
Private funds invested 
Other Benefits** $ __See attached4_ 

*See below

Estimate how many construction/permanent jobs will be created or retained as a 
result of this Project:
Construction:     40/ 6 months
Permanent:      0.5 (estimated $20,000/yr)5

Retained (at current facility): _ 0______________

Project Costs (Estimates) 
Land and Existing Buildings $   ___0_See attached6____ 

$   ___0_____ 
$   ___0_____ 

Soft Costs (5%) 
Other 
Total $   ___6,639,0007____ 

*** The Land will be leased from the Town of Bethel. There are no existing building at 
this site. The total project costs are listed below.

In addition to the above estimated capital costs of the project, which must include all costs 
of real property and equipment acquisition and building construction or reconstruction, 
you must include details on the amounts to be financed from private sector sources, an 
estimate of the percentage of project costs financed from public sector sources and an 
estimate of both the amount to be invested by the Applicant and the amount to be 
borrowed to finance the Project. 
 All costs will be provided from the private sector. No additional costs will be requested 
from the County or Town.  

---------------------------------------------------
----------------------------------------------------------------------------  

$ 100% -------------- $6,639,0003

. _200,------------- 000_ $744,6002 

scott
Highlight



In addition to the job figures provided above, please indicate the following: 

1)

0.58 

2) The projected timeframe for the creation of new jobs.

Summer 2020-Winter 2020 

3) The estimated salary and fringe benefit averages or ranges for categories of the
jobs that would be retained or created if the request for financial assistance is
granted.

_To be determined by contractor. 

4) An estimate of  the  number  of  residents of the economic development region as
established pursuant to section two hundred thirty of the Economic Development
Law, in which the project is located that would fill such jobs. The labor market area
defined by the agency (Mid-Hudson Economic Development Region)

100%, 0.5 people/year

H.) State whether there is a likelihood that the project would not be undertaken but for 
the financial assistance provided by the Agency, or, if the project could be undertaken 
without financial assistance provided by the Agency, a statement indicating why the 
project should be undertaken by the Agency  
Project would not be able to move forward without a PILOT agreement due to the 
uncertainty associated with taxes on solar projects in NYS.  

The projected number of full time equivalent jobs that would be retained and that 

would be created if the request for financial assistance is granted.

 

See attached9 

------------------------------------ 1,433,386 (From Data provided by Jennifer Flad)



IV. REPRESENTATIONS BY THE APPLICANT

The Applicant understands and agrees with the Agency as follows: 

A) Job Listings.  In accordance with Section 858-b (2) of the New York General
Municipal Law, the Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives
any Financial Assistance from the Agency, except as otherwise provided by
collective bargaining agreements, new employment opportunities created as a
result of the Project will be listed with the New York State Department of Labor
Community Services Division (the "DOL") and with the administrative entity
(collectively with the DOL, the "JTPA Entities") of the service delivery area created
by the federal job training partnership act (Public Law 97-300) ("JTPA") in which
the Project is located.

B) First Consideration for Employment.  In accordance with Section 858-b (2) of the
New York General Municipal Law, the Applicant understands and agrees that, if
the Project receives any Financial Assistance from the Agency, except as
otherwise provided by collective bargaining agreements, where practicable, the
Applicant will first consider persons eligible to participate in JTPA programs who
shall be referred by the JTPA Entities for new employment opportunities created
as a result of the Project.

C) Annual Sales Tax Filings.  In accordance with Section 874(8) of the New York
General Municipal Law, the Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project
receives any sales tax exemptions as part of the Financial Assistance from the
Agency, in accordance with Section 874(8) of the General Municipal Law, the
Applicant agrees to file, or cause to be filed, with the New York State Department
of Taxation and Finance, the annual form prescribed by the Department of
Taxation and Finance, describing the value of all sales tax exemptions claimed by
the Applicant and all consultants or subcontractors retained by the Applicant.

D) Annual Employment Reports.  The Applicant understands and agrees that, if the
Project receives any Financial Assistance from the Agency, the Applicant agrees
to file, or cause to be filed, with the Agency, on an annual basis, reports regarding
the number of people employed at the project site.

E) Absence of Conflicts of Interest.  The Applicant has received from the Agency a
list of the members, officers, and employees of the Agency.  No member, officers
or employee of the Agency has an interest, whether direct or indirect, in any
transaction contemplated by this Application, except as hereinafter described.

F.) The Applicant represents that the provisions of Section 862(1) of the New York 
General Municipal Law, as provided below, will not be violated if Financial 
Assistance is provided for the proposed Project: 



§ 862. Restrictions on funds of the agency. (1) No funds of the agency shall  be
used in respect of any project if the completion thereof would result in the removal
of an industrial or manufacturing plant of the project occupant from one area of the
state to another area of the state or in the abandonment of one or more plants or
facilities of the project occupant located within the state, provided, however, that
neither restriction shall apply if the agency shall determine on the basis of the
application before it that the project is reasonably necessary to discourage the
project occupant from removing such other plant or facility to a location outside the
state or is reasonably necessary to preserve the competitive position of the project
occupant in its respective industry.

G.) The Applicant confirms and acknowledges that the owner, occupant, or operator 
receiving Financial Assistance for the proposed Project is in substantial 
compliance with applicable local, state and federal tax, worker protection and 
environmental laws, rules and regulations. 

H.) The Applicant confirms and acknowledges that the submission of any knowingly 
false or knowingly misleading information may lead to the immediate termination 
of any Financial Assistance and the reimbursement of an amount equal to all or 
part of any tax exemption claimed by reason of the Agency’s involvement the 
Project. 

I.) The Applicant confirms and hereby acknowledges that as of the date of this 
Application, the Applicant is in substantial compliance with all provisions of Article 
18-A of the New York General Municipal Law, including, but not limited to, the
provision of Section 859-a and Section 862(1) of the New York General Municipal
Law.





THIS APPLICATION SHALL BE SUBMITTED WITH (I) TWO CHECKS: ONE 
COVERING A $250.00 APPLICATION FEE AND THE SECOND COVERING A 
$5,000.00 UP-FRONT ESCROW DEPOSIT; AND (II) APPLICANT’S FORMATION 
DOCUMENTS (IE: IF A CORPORATION: ITS CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION 
AND BYLAWS; IF A LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY: ITS ARTICLES OF 
ORGANIZATION AND OPERATING AGREEMENT; IF A LIMITED PARTNERSHIP: ITS 
CERTIFICATE OF LIMITED PARTNERSHIP AND LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 
AGREEMENT; OR IF A PARTNERSHIP: ITS PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT TO: 

COUNTY OF SULLIVAN INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
Executive Director 
548 BROADWAY 
MONTICELLO, NEW YORK 12701 





















Full Environmental Assessment Form 

Part 1 - Project and Setting 

Instructions for Completing Part 1 

Part I is to be completed by the applicant or project sponsor. Responses become part of the application for approval or funding, 
are subject to public review, and may be subject to fmiher verification. 

Complete Paii 1 based on infom1ation cmTently available. If additional research or investigation would be needed to fully respond to 
any item, please answer as thoroughly as possible based on cmTent information; indicate whether missing information does not exist, 
or is not reasonably available to the sponsor; and, when possible, generally describe work or studies which would be necessary to 
update or fully develop that information. 

Applicants/sponsors must complete all items in Sections A & B. In Sections C, D & E, most items contain an initial question that 
must be answered either "Yes" or "No". If the answer to the initial question is "Yes", complete the sub-questions that follow. If the 
answer to the initial question is "No", proceed to the next question. Section Fallows the project sponsor to identify and attach any 
additional information. Section G requires the name and signature of the project sponsor to verify that the infom1ation contained in 
Part 1 is accurate and complete. 

A. Project and Sponsor Information.

Name of Action or Project: 
BQ Energy, LLC Solar Energy System 
Project Location (describe, and attach a general location map): 

Town of Bethel Landfill, Sullivan County, NY 

Brief Description of Proposed Action (include purpose or need): 

BQ Energy, LLC proposes to lease town-owned land from the Town of Bethel to construct and operate a ground-mounted Solar Energy System, which is 
an unlisted action under SEQRA. The proposed action requires site plan approval from the Town of Bethel Planning Board and issuance of a special use 
permit and lease option with the Town Board. The proposed action will produce renewable energy on underutilized land consisting of a former gravel mine 
and a closed inactive solid waste landfill. 
NYSDEC Landfill ID: 53502 
NYSDEC Mine ID: 30086, Blum Rd. Gravel Mine. 

Name of Applicant/Sponsor: 
BQ Energy, LLC 

Address: 400 Market Street Industrial Park, Suite 32

City/PO: Wappingers Falls

Project Contact (if not same as sponsor; give name and title/role): 
James S. Falsetti 

Address: 
400 Market Street Industrial Park, Suite 32 
City/PO: 

Wappingers Falls 
Property Owner (if not same as sponsor): 

Town of Bethel 

Address: 
3454 Route 55, PO Box 300 
City/PO: White Lake 

Page 1 of 13 

Telephone: 

E-Mail:

State: NY

Telephone: 203-512-7446 

I Zip Code: 12590

E-Mail: jim.falsetti@bqenergy.com

State: 
NY 
Telephone: 845-583-4350 
E-Mail: bethelclerk@hvc.rr.com

State: NY 

I 
Zip Code: 

12590 

I Zip Code:12786

Attachment 1



B. Government Approvals

B. Government Approvals, Funding, or Sponsorship. ("Funding" includes grants, loans, tax relief, and any other forms of financial
assistance.)

Government Entity If Yes: Identify Agency and Approval(s) Application Date 
Required (Actual or projected) 

a. City Council, Town Board, 0Yes0No Land Lease Option July 2018 

or Village Board ofTmstees

b. City, Town or Village 0Yes0No Site Plan Approval, Special Use Permit July 2018 

Planning Board or Commission

c. City Council, Town or OYesiZINo 
Village Zoning Board of Appeals

d. Other local agencies OYesiZINo 

e. County agencies 0Yes0No IDA Fall 2018 

f. Regional agencies □YesiZINo

g. State agencies 0Yes0No NYSDEC, NYSERDA, SPDES Construction Gen Summer 2018 

Permit, Approvals for use of Landfill and Mine 

h. Federal agencies OYesiZ!No 

I. Coastal Resources.
i. Is the project site within a Coastal Area, or the waterfront area of a Designated Inland Waterway? 0Yesli21No 

ii. Is the project site located in a community with an approved Local Waterfront Revitalization Program? DYesliZINo 
iii. Is the project site within a Coastal Erosion Hazard Area? □ Yesli2)No

C. Planning and Zoning

C.1. Planning and zoning actions.

Will administrative or legislative adoption, or amendment of a plan, local law, ordinance, rule or regulation be the □YesliZINo 
only approval(s) which must be granted to enable the proposed action to proceed? 

• If Yes, complete sections C, F and G .
• If No, proceed to question C.2 and complete all remaining sections and questions in Part 1

C.2. Adopted land use plans.

a. Do any municipally- adopted (city, town, village or county) comprehensive land use plan(s) include the site liZIYesDNo 
where the proposed action would be located?

If Yes, does the comprehensive plan include specific recommendations for the site where the proposed action □YesliZINo
would be located? 

b. Is the site of the proposed action within any local or regional special planning district (for example: Greenway liZ)YesONo 
Brownfield Opportunity Area (BOA); designated State or Federal heritage area; watershed management plan;
or other?)

If Yes, identify the plan(s): 
Delaware River Basin Commission Com12rehensive Plan 

c. Is the proposed action located wholly or pa11ially within an area listed in an adopted municipal open space plan, 0Yes0No
or an adopted municipal fannland protection plan?

If Yes, identify the plan(s): 

Page 2 of 13 



C.3. Zoning

a. Is the site of the proposed action located in a municipality with an adopted zoning law or ordinance. 0Yes0No 
If Yes, what is the zoning classification(s) including any applicable overlay district?

Rural Farm District 

b. ls the use permitted or allowed by a special or conditional use permit? 0Yes0No 

c. Is a zoning change requested as part of the proposed action? OYesliZINo 
If Yes,
i. What is the proposed new zoning for the site?

C.4. Existing community services.

a. In what school district is the project site located? Liberty

b. What police or other public protection forces serve the project site?

Town of Bethel Constables Sullivan County Sheriff

c. Which fire protection and emergency medical services serve the project site?
Kauneonga Lake Fire, Swan Lake Fire, Ambulance District #2

d. What parks serve the project site?
Town of Bethel Pool and Park, 636 Old White Lake Turnr;iike

D. Project Details

D.1. Proposed and Potential Development

a. What is the general nature of the proposed action ( e.g., residential, industrial, commercial, recreational; if mixed, include all
components)? Commercial

b. a. Total acreage of the site of the proposed action? 14.5 acres 
b. Total acreage to be physically disturbed? 0.260 acres 
c. Total acreage (project site and any contiguous properties) owned

or controlled by the applicant or project sponsor? 14.5 acres 

c. Is the proposed action an expansion of an existing project or use? D YesliZ!No 
i. If Yes, what is the approximate percentage of the proposed expansion and identify the units (e.g., acres, miles, housing units,

square feet)? % Units:

d. ls the proposed action a subdivision, or does it include a subdivision? 0YesliZINo 
If Yes,

i. Purpose or type of subdivision? (e.g., residential, industrial, commercial; if mixed, specify types)

ii. Is a cluster/conservation layout proposed? 0YesONo 
iii. Number of lots proposed?
iv. Minimum and maximum proposed lot sizes? Minimum Maximum 

e. Will proposed action be constmcted in multiple phases? 0YesliZINo 
i. If No, anticipated period of construction: months 

--

ii. If Yes:
• Total number of phases anticipated

--

• Anticipated commencement date of phase 1 (including demolition) month __ year --
• Anticipated completion date of final phase __ month _year 
• Generally describe connections or relationships among phases, including any contingencies where progress of one phase may

detennine timing or duration of future phases:

Page 3 of 13 



f. Does the project include new residential uses? 0Yes0No 
If Yes, show numbers of units proposed.

One Family Two Family Three Family Multiple Family (four or more) 

Initial Phase 
At completion 

of all phases 

g. Does the proposed action include new non-residential construction (including expansions)? 0Yes0No 
If Yes,

i. Total number of structures
ii. Dimensions (in feet) of largest proposed structure: height; width; and length 

iii. Approximate extent of building space to be heated or cooled: square feet 

h. Does the proposed action include construction or other activities that will result in the impoundment of any 0Yes0No 
liquids, such as creation of a water supply, reservoir, pond, lake, waste lagoon or other storage?

If Yes, 
i. Purpose of the impoundment:

ii. If a water impoundment, the principal source of the water: D Ground water D Surface water streams OOther specify: 

iii. If other than water, identify the type of impounded/contained liquids and their source.

iv. Approximate size of the proposed impoundment. Volume: million gallons; surface area: acres 
v. Dimensions of the proposed dam or impounding structure: height; length 
vi. Construction method/materials for the proposed dam or impounding structure (e.g., earth fill, rock, wood, concrete):

D.2. Pr-oject Operations

a. Does the proposed action include any excavation, mining, or dredging, during construction, operations, or both? 0Yes0No
(Not including general site preparation, grading or installation of utilities or foundations where all excavated
materials will remain onsite)

If Yes: 
i . What is the purpose of the excavation or dredging? 

ii. How much material (including rock, earth, sediments, etc.) is proposed to be removed from the site?
• Volume (specify tons or cubic yards):
• Over what duration of time?

iii. Describe nature and characteristics of materials to be excavated or dredged, and plans to use, manage or dispose of them.

iv. Will there be onsite dewatering or processing of excavated materials? 0Yes0No 
If yes, describe.

v. What is the total area to be dredged or excavated? acres 
vi. What is the maximum area to be worked at any one time? acres 

vii. What would be the maximum depth of excavation or dredging? feet 
viii. Will the excavation require blasting? 0Yes0No 
ix. Summarize site reclamation goals and plan:

b. Would the proposed action cause or result in alteration of, increase or decrease in size of, or encroachment 0Yes0No 
into any existing wetland, waterbody, shoreline, beach or adjacent area?

If Yes: 
i. Identify the wetland or waterbody which would be affected (by name, water index number, wetland map number or geographic

description):

Page 4 of 13 



ii. Describe how the proposed action would affect that waterbody or wetland, e.g. excavation, fill, placement of structures, or
alteration of channels, banks and shorelines. Indicate extent of activities, alterations and additions in square feet or acres:

iii. Will proposed action cause or result in disturbance to bottom sediments? 0Yes0No 
If Yes, describe:

iv. Will proposed action cause or result in the destruction or removal of aquatic vegetation? 0Yes0No 
lfYes: 
• acres of aquatic vegetation proposed to be removed:
• expected acreage of aquatic vegetation remaining after project completion:
• purpose of proposed removal (e.g. beach clearing, invasive species control, boat access):

• proposed method of plant removal:
• if chemical/herbicide treatment will be used, specify product(s):

v. Describe any proposed reclamation/mitigation following disturbance:

c. Will the proposed action use, or create a new demand for water? □Yes li2]No 
If Yes:

i. Total anticipated water usage/demand per day: gallons/day 
ii. Will the proposed action obtain water from an existing public water supply? 0Yes□No 

If Yes:
• Name of district or service area:
• Does the existing public water supply have capacity to serve the proposal? 0 Yes0 No 
• ls the project site in the existing district? 0Yes0No 
• ls expansion of the district needed? 0Yes0No 
• Do existing lines serve the project site? OYesDNo 

iii. Will line extension within an existing district be necessary to supply the project? 0Yes□No 
If Yes:

• Describe extensions or capacity expansions proposed to serve this project:

• Source(s) of supply for the district:
iv. Is a new water supply district or service area proposed to be fom1ed to serve the project site? 0 Yes0No 

If, Yes:
• Applicant/sponsor for new district:
• Date application submitted or anticipated:
• Proposed source(s) of supply for new district:

v. If a public water supply will not be used, describe plans to provide water supply for the project:

vi. If water supply will be from wells (public or private), maximum pumping capacity: gallons/minute. 

d. Will the proposed action generate liquid wastes? 0Yesli2'.!No 
If Yes:
i. Total anticipated liquid waste generation per day: gallons/day 
ii. Nature of liquid wastes to be generated ( e.g., sanitary wastewater, industrial; if combination, describe all components and

approximate volumes or proportions of each):

iii. Will the proposed action use any existing public wastewater treatment facilities? 0Yes0No 
If Yes:
• Name of wastewater treatment plant to be used:
• Name of district:
• Does the existing wastewater treatment plant have capacity to serve the project? 0Yes0No 
• ls the project site in the existing district? 0Yes0No 
• Is expansion of the district needed? 0Yes0No 

Page 5 of 13 



• Do existing sewer lines serve the project site? 0Yes0No 
• Will line extension within an existing district be necessary to serve the project? 0Yes0No 

If Yes:
• Describe extensions or capacity expansions proposed to serve this project:

iv. Will a new wastewater (sewage) treatment district be formed to serve the project site? 0Yes0No 
If Yes:
• Applicant/sponsor for new district:
• Date application submitted or anticipated:
• What is the receiving water for the wastewater discharge?

V. If public facilities will not be used, describe plans to provide wastewater treatment for the project, including specifying proposed
receiving water (name and classification if surface discharge, or describe subsurface disposal plans):

vi. Describe any plans or designs to capture, recycle or reuse liquid waste:

e. Will the proposed action disturb more than one acre and create storn1water runoff, either from new point t'.]YesONo 
sources (i.e. ditches, pipes, swales, curbs, gutters or other concentrated flows of stormwater) or non-point
source (i.e. sheet flow) during constrnction or post construction?

If Yes: 
i. How much impervious surface will the project create in relation to total size of project parcel?

__ Square feet or � acres (impervious surface) 
_ _  Square feet or 59.19 acres (parcel size) 

ii. Describe types of new point sources.None 

iii. Where will the stormwater nmoff be directed (i.e. on-site stormwater management facility/stmctures, adjacent properties,
groundwater, on-site surface water or off-site surface waters)?

Existing drainage �atterns will be maintained.

• If to surface waters, identify receiving water bodies or wetlands:
Monoauo River

• Will stormwater runoff flow to adjacent properties? 0Yes0No 
iv. Does proposed plan minimize impervious surfaces, use pervious materials or collect and re-use stormwater? 0Yes0No 

f. Does the proposed action include, or will it use on-site, one or more sources of air emissions, including fuel 0Yes0No 
combustion, waste incineration, or other processes or operations?

IfYes, identify: 
i. Mobile sources during project operations (e.g., heavy equipment, fleet or delivery vehicles)

ii. Stationary sources during construction (e.g., power generation, structural heating, batch plant, crushers)

iii. Stationary sources during operations (e.g., process emissions, large boilers, electric generation)

g. Will any air emission sources named in D.2.f(above), require a NY State Air Registration, Air Facility Permit, 0Yes0No 
or Federal Clean Air Act Title IV or Title V Permit?

If Yes: 
i. Is the project site located in an Air quality non-attainment area? (Area routinely or periodically fails to meet 0Yes0No 

ambient air quality standards for all or some pm1s of the year) 
ii. In addition to emissions as calculated in the application, the project will generate:

• Tons/year (short tons) of Carbon Dioxide (CO2) 
• Tons/year (sho1i tons) of Nitrous Oxide (N20) 
• Tons/year (short tons) of Perfluorocarbons (PF Cs) 
• Tons/year (short tons) of Sulfur Hexafluoride (SF6) 
• Tons/year (short tons) of Carbon Dioxide equivalent of Hydroflourocarbons (HFCs) 
• Tons/year (short tons) of Hazardous Air Pollutants (HAPs) 

Page 6 of 13 



h. Will the proposed action generate or emit methane (including, but not limited to, sewage treatment plants, 0Yes0No 
landfills, composting facilities)?

If Yes: 
i. Estimate methane generation in tons/year (metric):
ii. Describe any methane capture, control or elimination measures included in project design (e.g., combustion to generate heat or

electricity, flaring):

i. Will the proposed action result in the release of air pollutants from open-air operations or processes, such as 0Yes0No 
quarry or landfill operations?

If Yes: Describe operations and nature of emissions (e.g., diesel exhaust, rock pa11iculates/dust): 

j. Will the proposed action result in a substantial increase in traffic above present levels or generate substantial 0Yes0No 
new demand for transportation facilities or services?

If Yes: 
i. When is the peak traffic expected (Check all that apply): □ Morning D Evening □Weekend

D Randomly between hours of to
ii. For commercial activities only, projected number of semi-trailer truck trips/day:

iii. Parking spaces: Existing Proposed Net increase/decrease 
iv. Does the proposed action include any shared use parking? 0Yes0No 
v. If the proposed action includes any modification of existing roads, creation of new roads or change in existing access, describe:

vi. Are public/private transpo11ation service(s) or facilities available within½ mile of the proposed site? OYesONo 
vii Will the proposed action include access to public transportation or accommodations for use of hybrid, electric 0Yes0No 

or other alternative fueled vehicles? 
viii. Will the proposed action include plans for pedestrian or bicycle accommodations for connections to existing 0Yes0No 

pedestrian or bicycle routes?

k. Will the proposed action (for commercial or industrial projects only) generate new or additional demand 0Yes0No 
for energy?

If Yes: 
i. Estimate annual electricity demand during operation of the proposed action:

ii. Anticipated sources/suppliers of electricity for the project ( e.g., on-site combustion, on-site renewable, via grid/local utility, or
other):

iii. Will the proposed action require a new, or an upgrade to, an existing substation? 0Yes0No 

I. Hours of operation. Answer all items which apply.
i. During Construction: ii. During Operations:

• Monday - Friday: 7 AM-5 PM • Monday - Friday: 12 AM-11:59 PM 

• Saturday: None • Saturday: 12 AM - 11 :59 PM 

• Sunday: None • Sunday: 12 AM - 11 :59 PM 

• Holidays: None • Holidays: 12 AM - 11 :59 PM 

Page 7 of 13 



m. Will the proposed action produce noise that will exceed existing ambient noise levels dming construction, 0Yes1i21No 
operation, or both?

If yes: 
i. Provide details including sources, time of day and duration:

ii. Will proposed action remove existing natural barriers that could act as a noise barrier or screen? 0YesONo 
Describe:

n .. Will the proposed action have outdoor lighting? 0Yesli2!No 
If yes: 
i. Describe source(s), location(s), height offixture(s), direction/aim, and proximity to nearest occupied structures:

ii. Will proposed action remove existing natural barriers that could act as a light barrier or screen? 0YesONo 
Describe:

o. Does the proposed action have the potential to produce odors for more than one hour per day? 0Yes1i21No 
If Yes, describe possible sources, potential frequency and duration of odor emissions, and proximity to nearest
occupied structures:

p. Will the proposed action include any bulk storage of petroleum (combined capacity ofover 1,100 gallons) 0Yes1i21No 
or chemical products 185 gallons in above ground storage or any amount in underground storage?

If Yes: 
i. Product(s) to be stored

ii. Volume(s)_ __ per umt time (e.g., month, year) 
iii. Generally describe proposed storage facilities:

q. Will the proposed action (commercial, industiial and recreational projects only) use pesticides (i.e., herbicides, D Yes 1i21No 
insecticides) during construction or operation?

If Yes: 
i. Describe proposed treatment(s):

ii. Will the proposed action use Integrated Pest Management Practices? D Yes □No 
r. Will the proposed action (commercial or industrial projects only) involve or require the management or disposal D Yes 1i21No

of solid waste ( excluding hazardous materials)?
If Yes: 

i. Describe any solid waste(s) to be generated during construction or operation of the facility:
• Construction: tons per (unit of time) 
• Operation : tons per (unit of time) 

ii. Describe any proposals for on-site minimization, recycling or reuse of materials to avoid disposal as solid waste:
• Construction:

• Operation:

iii. Proposed disposal methods/facilities for solid waste generated on-site:
• Construction:

• Operation:

Page 8 of 13 



s. Does the proposed action include construction or modification of a solid waste management facility?
If Yes:

D Yes 0 No 

i. Type of management or handling of waste proposed for the site (e.g., recycling or transfer station, composting, landfill, or
other disposal activities):--------- -------------------------- - - --

ii. Anticipated rate of disposal/processing:
• _ ___ Tons/month, if transfer or other non-combustion/thermal treatment, or
• _ ___ Tons/hour, if combustion or thermal treatment

iii. If landfill, anticipated site life: _ __ _ _ ____ _ _ _ ___ years

t. Will proposed action at the site involve the commercial generation, treatment, storage, or disposal of hazardous
waste?

If Yes: 

0Yes0No 

i. Name(s) of all hazardous wastes or constituents to be generated, handled or managed at facility: ___ __ ________ 

ii. Generally describe processes or activities involving hazardous wastes or constituents: ________________ _

iii. Specify amount to be handled or generated tons/month 
iv. Describe any proposals for on-site minimization, recycling or reuse of hazardous constituents: _ _ _ _ _ ________ 

v. Will any hazardous wastes be disposed at an existing offsite hazardous waste facility? 0Yes0No 
If Yes: provide name and location of facility:- - - - - - - ------------------------- --

If No: describe proposed management of any hazardous wastes which will not be sent to a hazardous waste facility: 

E. Site and Setting of Proposed Action

E.I. Land uses on and surrounding the project site

a. Existing land uses.
i. Check all uses that occur on, adjoining and near the project site.

D Urban D Industrial D Commercial D Residential (suburban) 0 Rural (non-farm) 
D Forest D Agriculture D Aquatic 0 Other (specify): Inactive Closed Landfill, Inactive Sand Mine 

ii. If mix of uses, generally describe:
One 12arcel consisting of inactive closed solid waste landfill. One 12arcel consisting of inactive sand mine.

b. Land uses and covertypes on the project site.

Land use or Current Acreage After Change 
Covertype Acreage Project Completion (Acres+/-) 

• Roads, buildings, and other paved or impervious
surfaces 0 0 0 

• Forested 0 0 0 

• Meadows, grasslands or brushlands (non-
agriculh1ral, including abandoned agricultural) 0 0 0 

• Agricultural
0 0 0 

(includes active orchards, field, greenhouse etc.)
• Surface water features

(lakes, ponds, streams, rivers, etc.) 0 0 0 

• Wetlands (freshwater or tidal) 0 0 0 

• Non-vegetated (bare rock, earth or fill) 0 0 0 

• Other
Describe: Closed Landfill (LF), Inactive Sand Mine (SM) 5.5 (LF), 10.0 (SM) 5.5 (LF), 10.0 (SM) 0 

Page 9 of 13 



c. Is the project site presently used by members of the community for public recreation? 0Yes0No 
i. TfYes: explain:

d. Are there any facilities serving children, the elderly, people with disabilities (e.g., schools, hospitals, licensed liZ]YesONo 
day care centers, or group homes) within 1500 feet of the project site?

If Yes, 
i. Identify Facilities:
Town of Bethel Pool and Park, 636 Old White Lake Turn12ike

e. Does the project site contain an existing dam? 0Yes0No 
If Yes:

i. Dimensions of the dam and impoundment:
• Dam height: feet 
• Dam length: feet 
• Surface area: acres 
• Volume impounded: gallons OR acre-feet 

ii. Dam's existing hazard classification:
iii. Provide date and summarize results of last inspection:

f. Has the project site ever been used as a municipal, commercial or industrial solid waste management facility, liZ]YesONo 
or does the project site adjoin property which is now, or was at one time, used as a solid waste management facility?

If Yes: 
i. Has the facility been formally closed? liZ]YesD No 

• If yes, cite sources/documentation: Bethel Landfill Closure Certification Report (June 12, 2000)
ii. Describe the location of the project site relative to the boundaries of the solid waste management facility:

The 12roject site is located on the ground surface above the closed landfill. The Post Closure Monitoring and Maintenance Manual will be modified to
accommodate the new use. 

iii. Describe any development constraints due to the prior solid waste activities:
No excavation allowed deei:1er than 12 inches. Use of low ground Qressure eguii:1ment.

g. Have hazardous wastes been generated, treated and/or disposed of at the site, or does the project site adjoin 0Yes0No 
property which is now or was at one time used to commercially treat, store and/or dispose of hazardous waste?

If Yes: 
i. Describe waste(s) handled and waste management activities, including approximate time when activities occurred:

h. Potential contamination history. Has there been a repmied spill at the proposed project site, or have any 0Yes0 No 
remedial actions been conducted at or adjacent to the proposed site?

If Yes: 
i. Is any portion of the site listed on the NYSDEC Spills Incidents database or Environmental Site 0Yes0No 

Remediation database? Check all that apply: 
D Yes - Spills Incidents database Provide DEC ID number(s): 
D Yes - Environmental Site Remediation database Provide DEC ID number(s): 
D Neither database 

ii. If site has been subject ofRCRA corrective activities, describe control measures:

iii. Is the project within 2000 feet of any site in the NYSDEC Environmental Site Remediation database? 0Yes0No 
If yes, provide DEC ID number(s):

iv. If yes to (i), (ii) or (iii) above, describe cmTent status ofsite(s):

Page 10 of 13 



v. Is the project site subject to an institutional control limiting prope1iy uses? 0 Yes0No 
• If yes, DEC site ID number: 53502

• Describe the type of institutional control ( e.g., deed restriction or easement): Landfill Post Closure Monitoring and Maintenance
• Describe any use limitations: Future use reguires NYSDEC a(:!f:!rDVal.
• Describe any engineering controls: Landfill cover and drainage features .
• Will the project affect the institutional or engineering controls in place? OYesliZ!No 
• Explain:

The solar installation will be on the existing ground surface above the landfill cover.

E.2. Natural Resources On or Near Project Site

a. What is the average depth to bedrock on the project site? 46 feet 

b. Are there bedrock outcroppings on the project site? O YesliZ!No 
If Yes, what proportion of the site is comprised of bedrock outcroppings? % 

c. Predominant soil type(s) present on project site: % 
% 
% 

d. What is the average depth to the water table on the project site? Average: feet 

e. Drainage status of project site soils:liZl Well Drained: 75 % of site 
liZl Moderately Well Drained: 25 % of site 
D Poorly Drained 

- -

% of site 

f. Approximate proportion of proposed action site with slopes: liZl 0-l 0%: � % of site 
liZl I 0-15%: 40 % of site 
liZl 15% or greater: 10 % of site 

g. Are there any unique geologic features on the project site? 0Yes0No 
If Yes, describe:

h. Surface water features.
i. Does any portion of the project site contain wetlands or other waterbodies (including streams, rivers, 0Yes0No 

ponds or lakes)? 
ii. Do any wetlands or other waterbodies adjoin the project site? 0Yes0No 
If Yes to either i or ii, continue. If No, skip to E.2.i.
iii. Are any of the wetlands or waterbodies within or adjoining the project site regulated by any federal, 0Yes0No 

state or local agency?
iv. For each identified regulated wetland and waterbody on the project site, provide the following information:

• Streams: Name West Branch Mongaup River Classification B 
• Lakes or Ponds: Name Classification 
• Wetlands: Name Approximate Size 

Wetland No. (if regulated by DEC) 
v. Are any of the above water bodies listed in the most recent compilation ofNYS water quality-impaired OYesliZ!No 

waterbodies?
If yes, name of impaired water body/bodies and basis for listing as impaired: 

i. Is the project site in a designated Floodway? OYesliZ!No 

j. Is the project site in the 100 year Floodplain? 0Yes0No 

k. Is the project site in the 500 year Floodplain? OYesl!ZINo 

I. Is the project site located over, or immediately adjoining, a primary, principal or sole source aquifer? 0Yes0No 
If Yes:

i. Name of aquifer:

Page 11 of 13 



m. Identify the predominant wildlife species that occupy or use the project site:
deer

n. Does the project site contain a designated significant natural community? 0Yes0No 
If Yes:

i. Describe the habitat/community (composition, function, and basis for designation):

ii. Source(s) of description or evaluation:
iii. Extent of community/habitat:

• Cun-ently: acres 
• Following completion of project as proposed: acres 
• Gain or loss (indicate+ or-): acres 

o. Does project site contain any species of plant or animal that is listed by the federal government or NYS as 0Yes0No 
endangered or threatened, or does it contain any areas identified as habitat for an endangered or threatened species?

p. Does the project site contain any species of plant or animal that is listed by NYS as rare, or as a species of 0Yes0No 
special concern?

Area previously disturbed by mining operation and closed landfill. 

q. Is the project site or adjoining area currently used for hunting, trapping, fishing or shell fishing? 0Yes0No 
If yes, give a brief description of how the proposed action may affect that use:

E.3. Designated Public Resources On or Near Project Site

a. ls the project site, or any portion of it, located in a designated agricultural district certified pursuant to 0Yesl!2]No 
Agriculture and Markets Law, Article 25-AA, Section 303 and 304?

If Yes, provide county plus district name/number: 

b. Are agricultural lands consisting of highly productive soils present? 0Yesl!2]No 
i. If Yes: acreage(s) on project site?

ii. Source(s) of soil rating(s):

c. Does the project site contain all or part of, or is it substantially contiguous to, a registered National 0Yes0No 
Natural Landmark?

If Yes: 
i. Nature of the natural landmark: D Biological Community D Geological Feature 
ii. Provide brief description of landmark, including values behind designation and approximate size/extent:

d. ls the project site located in or does it adjoin a state listed Critical Environmental Area? 0Yes0No 
If Yes:

i. CEA name:
ii. Basis for designation:

iii. Designating agency and date:

Page 12 of 13 



e. Does the project site contain, or is it substantially contiguous to, a building, archaeological site, or district D YesliZ!No 
which is listed on, or has been nominated by the NYS Board of Historic Preservation for inclusion on, the
State or National Register of Historic Places?

If Yes: 
i. Nature of historic/archaeological resource: □Archaeological Site □Historic Building or District
ii. Name:

iii. Brief description of attributes on which listing is based:

f. Is the project site, or any portion of it, located in or adjacent to an area designated as sensitive for 0Yesli2]No 
archaeological sites on the NY State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) archaeological site inventory?

g. Have additional archaeological or historic site(s) or resources been identified on the project site? 0Yesli2]No 
If Yes:

i. Describe possible resource(s):
ii. Basis for identification:

h. Ts the project site within fives miles of any officially designated and publicly accessible federal, state, or local 0Yesli2]No 
scenic or aesthetic resource?

If Yes: 
i. Identify resource:

ii. Nature of, or basis for, designation (e.g., established highway overlook, state or local park, state historic trail or scenic byway,
etc.):

iii. Distance between project and resource: miles. 

I. Is the project site located within a designated river corridor under the Wild, Scenic and Recreational Rivers 0Yesli2]No 
Program 6 NYCRR 666?

If Yes: 
i. Identify the name of the river and its designation:
ii. Is the activity consistent with development restrictions contained in 6NYCRR Part 666? 0Yes0No 

F. Additional Information

Attach any additional infonnation which may be needed to clarify your project. 

If you have identified any adverse impacts which could be associated with your proposal, please describe those impacts plus any 
measures which you propose to avoid or minimize them. 

G. Verification

I ce1iify that the inf01mation provided is true to the best of my knowledge. 

Applicant/Sponsor Name _B_Q_E_n_e_rg�y�,_L_LC __ _ ____ ___ _ Date August 8, 2018 

Signature _____ _cC,_�"------·f\L _ _,�"'��·
_,,,_ _ ________ _ Title Commercial Directo r

PRINT FORM Page 13 of 13 



Full Environmental Assessment Form 

Part 2 - Identification of Potential Project Impacts 

Agency Use Only [If applicable] 
Project : ! BO Energy 

l===::;;;:;;;;:;;:::====l 
Date: ._! ____ 1_21_03_1,_e _____. 

Part 2 is to be completed by the lead agency. Part 2 is designed to help the lead agency inventory all potential resources that could 
be affected by a proposed project or action. We recognize that the lead agency's reviewer(s) will not necessarily be environmental 
professionals. So, the questions are designed to walk a reviewer through the assessment process by providing a series of questions that 
can be answered using the information found in Part 1. To further assist the lead agency in completing Part 2, the form identifies the 
most relevant questions in Part 1 that will provide the information needed to answer the Part 2 question. When Part 2 is completed, the 
lead agency will have identified the relevant environmental areas that may be impacted by the proposed activity. 

If the lead agency is a state agency and the action is in any Coastal Area, complete the Coastal Assessment Form before proceeding 
with this assessment. 

Tips for completing Part 2: 

• Review all of the information provided in Part l.
• Review any application, maps, supporting materials and the Full EAF Workbook.
• Answer each of the 18 questions in Part 2.
• If you answer "Yes" to a numbered question, please complete all the questions that follow in that section.
• If you answer "No" to a numbered question, move on to the next numbered question.
• Check appropriate column to indicate the anticipated size of the impact.
• Proposed projects that would exceed a numeric threshold contained in a question should result in the reviewing agency

checking the box "Moderate to large impact may occur."
• The reviewer is not expected to be an expert in environmental analysis.
• If you are not sure or undecided about the size of an impact, it may help to review the sub-questions for the general

1. 

question and consult the workbook.
• When answering a question consider all components of the proposed activity, that is, the "whole action".
• Consider the possibility for long-term and cumulative impacts as well as direct impacts.
• Answer the question in a reasonable manner considering the scale and context of the project.

Impact on Land 

Proposed action may involve construction on, or physical alteration of, □NO li2!YES 
the land surface of the proposed site. (See Part 1. D.l) 
If "Yes", answer questions a -j. If "No", move on to Section 2. 

Relevant No,or Moderate 
Part I small to large 

Question(s) impact impact may 
may occur occur 

a. The proposed action may involve construction on land where depth to water table is E2d 0 □ less than 3 feet.

b. The proposed action may involve construction on slopes of 15% or greater. E2f 0 □ 

c. The proposed action may involve construction on land where bedrock is exposed, or E2a 0 □ 
generally within 5 feet of existing ground surface.

d. The proposed action may involve the excavation and removal of more than 1,000 tons D2a 0 □ 
of natural material.

e. The proposed action may involve construction that continues for more than one year Die 0 □ 
or in multiple phases.

f. The proposed action may result in increased erosion, whether from physical D2e, D2q 0 □ 
disturbance or vegetation removal (including from treatment by herbicides).

g. The proposed action is, or may be, located within a Coastal Erosion hazard area. Bli 0 □ 

h. Other impacts: 0 □ 

Page 1 oflO 



2. Impact on Geological Features

The proposed action may result in the modification or destruction of, or inhibit
access to, any unique or unusual land forms on the site ( e.g., cliffs, dunes, 0NO □YES
minerals, fossils, caves). (See Part 1. E.2.g)

If "Yes", answer questions a - c. If "No", move on to Section 3.
Relevant No,or Moderate 

Part I small to large 
Question(s) impact impact may 

may occur occur 

a. Identify the specific land form(s) attached: E2g □ □ 

b. The proposed action may affect or is adjacent to a geological feature listed as a E3c □ □ 

registered National Natural Landmark.
Specific feature:

c. Other impacts: □ □ 

3. Impacts on Surface Water

The proposed action may affect one or more wetlands or other surface water 0NO □YES
bodies (e.g., streams, rivers, ponds or lakes). (See Part 1. D.2, E.2.h)

If "Yes", answer questions a - !. If "No", move on to Section 4.
Relevant No,or Moderate 

Part I small to large 
Question(s) impact impact may 

may occur occur 

a. The proposed action may create a new water body. D2b,Dlh □ □ 

b. The proposed action may result in an increase or decrease of over 10% or more than a D2b □ □ 

IO acre increase or decrease in the surface area of any body of water.

c. The proposed action may involve dredging more than 100 cubic yards of material D2a □ □ 

from a wetland or water body.

d. The proposed action may involve construction within or adjoining a freshwater or E2h □ □ 

tidal wetland, or in the bed or banks of any other water body.

e. The proposed action may create turbidity in a waterbody, either from upland erosion, D2a, D2h □ □ 

runoff or by disturbing bottom sediments.

f. The proposed action may include construction of one or more intake(s) for withdrawal D2c □ □ 

of water from surface water.

g. The proposed action may include construction of one or more outfall(s) for discharge 02d □ □ 

of wastewater to surface water(s).

h. The proposed action may cause soil erosion, or otherwise create a source of D2e □ □ 

stormwater discharge that may lead to siltation or other degradation of receiving
water bodies.

i. The proposed action may affect the water quality of any water bodies within or E2h □ □ 

downstream of the site of the proposed action.

j. The proposed action may involve the application of pesticides or herbicides in or D2q, E2h □ □ 

around any water body.

k. The proposed action may require the construction of new, or expansion of existing, Dia, 02d □ □ 

wastewater treatment facilities.

Page 2 oflO 



I I. Otho, llllpao�: _______________________ _ D D 

4. Impact on groundwater

The proposed action may result in new or additional use of ground water, or �NO OYES 
may have the potential to introduce contaminants to ground water or an aquifer.
(See Part I. D.2.a, D.2.c, D.2.d, D.2.p, D.2.q, D.2.t)
If "Yes", answer questions a - h. If "No", move on to Section 5.

Relevant No,or Moderate 
Part I small to large 

Question(s) impact impact may 
mav occur occur 

a. The proposed action may require new water supply wells, or create additional demand D2c D D 

on supplies from existing water supply wells.

b. Water supply demand from the proposed action may exceed safe and sustainable D2c D D 

withdrawal capacity rate of the local supply or aquifer.
Cite Source:

c. The proposed action may allow or result in residential uses in areas without water and Dla, D2c D D 

sewer services.

d. The proposed action may include or require wastewater discharged to groundwater. D2d,E21 D D 

e. The proposed action may result in the construction of water supply wells in locations D2c, Elf, D D 

where groundwater is, or is suspected to be, contaminated. Elg, Elh

f. The proposed action may require the bulk storage of petroleum or chemical products D2p,E21 D D 

over ground water or an aquifer.

g. The proposed action may involve the commercial application of pesticides within 100 E2h, D2q, D D 

feet of potable drinking water or irrigation sources. E21, D2c

h. Other impacts: D D 

5. Impact on Flooding
The proposed action may result in development on lands subject to flooding. �NO □YES
(See Part I. E.2)
If "Yes", answer questions a - �- If "No", move on to Section 6.

Relevant No, or Moderate 
Part I small to large 

Question(s) impact impact may 
may occur occur 

a. The proposed action may result in development in a designated floodway. E2i D D 

b. The proposed action may result in development within a l 00 year floodplain. E2j D D 

c. The proposed action may result in development within a 500 year floodplain. E2k D D 

d. The proposed action may result in, or require, modification of existing drainage D2b, D2e D D 

patterns.

e. The proposed action may change flood water flows that contribute to flooding. D2b, E2i, D D 

E2i, E2k 

f. If there is a dam located on the site of the proposed action, is the dam in need of repair, Ele D D 

or upgrade?
Page 3 oflO 



I 
g. Othec ;mpacts,

□ □ 

6. Impacts on Air
The proposed action may include a state regulated air emission source. �NO □YES
(See Part 1. D.2.f., D,2,h, D.2.g)

ff "Yes", answer questions a -f ff "No", move on to Section 7.

Relevant No, or Moderate 
Part I small to large 

Question(s) impact impact may 
mav occur occur 

a. If the proposed action requires federal or state air emission permits, the action may
also emit one or more greenhouse gases at or above the following levels:

i. More than 1000 tons/year of carbon dioxide (CO2) D2g □ □ 

ii. More than 3.5 tons/year of nitrous oxide (N20) D2g □ □ 

iii. More than 1000 tons/year of carbon equivalent ofperfluorocarbons (PFCs) D2g □ □ 

iv. More than .045 tons/year of sulfur hexafluoride (SF 6) D2g □ □ 

v. More than 1000 tons/year of carbon dioxide equivalent of D2g 
□ □ 

hydrochloroflourocarbons (HFCs) emissions
vi. 43 tons/year or more of methane D2h □ □ 

b. The proposed action may generate 10 tons/year or more of any one designated D2g □ □ 

hazardous air pollutant, or 25 tons/year or more of any combination of such hazardous
air pollutants.

c. The proposed action may require a state air registration, or may produce an emissions D2f,D2g □ □ 

rate of total contaminants that may exceed 5 lbs. per hour, or may include a heat
source capable of producing more than 10 million BTU's per hour.

d. The proposed action may reach 50% of any of the thresholds in "a" through "c", D2g □ □ 

above.

e. The proposed action may result in the combustion or thermal treatment of more than 1 D2s □ □ 

ton of refuse per hour.

f. Other impacts: □ □ 

7. Impact on Plants and Animals
The proposed action may result in a loss of flora or fauna. (See Part 1. E.2. m.-q.) �NO □YES
If "Yes", answer questions a - i. If "No", move on to Section 8.

Relevant No, or Moderate 
Part I small to large 

Question(s) impact impact may 
mavoccur occur 

a. The proposed action may cause reduction in population or loss of individuals of any E2o □ □ 

threatened or endangered species, as listed by New York State or the Federal
government, that use the site, or are found on, over, or near the site.

b. The proposed action may result in a reduction or degradation of any habitat used by E2o □ □ 

any rare, threatened or endangered species, as listed by New York State or the federal
government.

c. The proposed action may cause reduction in population, or loss of individuals, of any E2p □ □ 

species of special concern or conservation need, as listed by New York State or the
Federal government, that use the site, or are found on, over, or near the site.

d. The proposed action may result in a reduction or degradation of any habitat used by E2p □ □ 

any species of special concern and conservation need, as listed by New York State or
the Federal government.

Page 4 oflO 



e. The proposed action may diminish the capacity of a registered National Natural E3c □ □ 

Landmark to support the biological community it was established to protect.

f. The proposed action may result in the removal of, or ground disturbance in, any E2n □ □ 

portion of a designated significant natural community.
Source:

g. The proposed action may substantially interfere with nesting/breeding, foraging, or
E2m □ □ 

over-wintering habitat for the predominant species that occupy or use the project site.

h. The proposed action requires the conversion of more than l O acres of forest, Elb 
□ □ 

grassland or any other regionally or locally important habitat.
Habitat type & information source:

i. Proposed action (commercial, industrial or recreational projects, only) involves use of D2q □ □ 

herbicides or pesticides.

j. Other impacts: □ □ 

8. Impact on Agricultural Resources

The proposed action may impact agricultural resources. (See Part I. E.3.a. and b.) �NO □YES

If "Yes", answer questions a - h. If "No", move on to Section 9.
Relevant No, or Moderate 

Part I small to large 
Question(s) impact impact may 

may occur occur 

a. The proposed action may impact soil classified within soil group l through 4 of the E2c, E3b □ □ 

NYS Land Classification Svstem.

b. The proposed action may sever, cross or otherwise limit access to agricultural land E la, Elb □ □ 

(includes cropland, hayfields, pasture, vineyard, orchard, etc).

c. The proposed action may result in the excavation or compaction of the soil profile of E3b □ □ 

active agricultural land.

d. The proposed action may irreversibly convert agricultural land to non-agricultural Elb, E3a □ □ 

uses, either more than 2.5 acres iflocated in an Agricultural District, or more than 10
acres if not within an Agricultural District.

e. The proposed action may disrupt or prevent installation of an agricultural land El a, E lb  □ □ 

management system.

f. The proposed action may result, directly or indirectly, in increased development C2c, C3, □ □ 

potential or pressure on farmland. D2c, D2d 

g. The proposed project is not consistent with the adopted municipal Farmland C2c □ □ 

Protection Plan.

h. Other impacts: □ □ 

Page 5 oflO 



9. Impact on Aesthetic Resources
The land use of the proposed action are obviously different from, or are in �NO □YES
sharp contrast to, current land use patterns between the proposed project and
a scenic or aesthetic resource. (Part 1. E.l.a, E.1.b, E.3.h.)
If "Yes", answer questions a - f!. If "No", f!O to Section 10.

Relevant No, or Moderate 
Part I small to large 

Question(s) impact impact may 
may occur occur 

a. Proposed action may be visible from any officially designated federal, state, or local E3h □ □ 

scenic or aesthetic resource.

b. The proposed action may result in the obstruction, elimination or significant E3h, C2b □ □ 

screening of one or more officially designated scenic views.

c. The proposed action may be visible from publicly accessible vantage points: E3h 
i. Seasonally (e.g., screened by summer foliage, but visible during other seasons) □ □ 

ii. Year round □ □ 

d. The situation or activity in which viewers are engaged while viewing the proposed E3h 

action is:
E2q, 

i. Routine travel by residents, including travel to and from work
□ □ 

ii. Recreational or tourism based activities Elc 
□ □ 

e. The proposed action may cause a diminishment of the public enjoyment and E3h □ □ 

appreciation of the designated aesthetic resource.

f. There are similar projects visible within the following distance of the proposed Dla, Ela, □ □ 

project: Dlf, Dlg 

0-1/2 mile
½-3 mile
3-5 mile
5+ mile

g. Other impacts: □ □ 

10. Impact on Historic and Archeological Resources
The proposed action may occur in or adjacent to a historic or archaeological �NO □YES
resource. (Part 1. E.3.e, f. and g.)

If "Yes", answer questions a - e. If "No", go to Section 11.
Relevant No, or Moderate 

Part I small to large 
Question(s) impact impact may 

mavoccur occur 

a. The proposed action may occur wholly or partially within, or substantially contiguous E3e □ □ 

to, any buildings, archaeological site or district which is listed on or has been
nominated by the NYS Board of Historic Preservation for inclusion on the State or
National Register of Historic Places.

b. The proposed action may occur wholly or partially within, or substantially contiguous E3f □ □ 

to, an area desigriated as sensitive for archaeological sites on the NY State Historic
Preservation Office (SHPO) archaeological site inventory.

c. The proposed action may occur wholly or partially within, or substantially contiguous E3g □ □ 

to, an archaeological site not included on the NY SHPO inventory.
Source:

Page 6 oflO 



d. Other impacts: □ □ 

If any of the above ( a-d) are answered "Moderate to large impact may
e. occur", continue with the following questions to help support conclusions in Part 3:

l. The proposed action may result in the destruction or alteration of all or part E3e, E3g, □ □ 
of the site or property. E3f 

11. The proposed action may result in the alteration of the property's setting or E3e,E3f, □ □ 
integrity. E3g, Ela, 

Elb 
lll. The proposed action may result in the introduction of visual elements which E3e, E3f, □ □ 

are out of character with the site or property, or may alter its setting. E3g, E3h, 
C2,C3 

11. Impact on Open Space and Recreation
The proposed action may result in a loss of recreational opportunities or a �NO □YES
reduction of an open space resource as designated in any adopted
municipal open space plan.
(See Part 1. C.2.c, E.1.c., E.2.q.)
If "Yes", answer questions a - e. If "No ", �o to Section 12.

Relevant No,or Moderate 
Part I small to large 

Question(s) impact impact may 
may occur occur 

a. The proposed action may result in an impairment of natural functions, or "ecosystem D2e, Elb □ □ 
services", provided by an undeveloped area, including but not limited to stormwater E2h, 
storage, nutrient cycling, wildlife habitat. E2m, E2o, 

E2n,E2p 

b. The proposed action may result in the loss of a current or future recreational resource. C2a, Elc, □ □ 
C2c, E2q 

c. The proposed action may eliminate open space or recreational resource in an area C2a, C2c □ □ 
with few such resources. Elc, E2q 

d. The proposed action may result in loss of an area now used informally by the C2c, El c □ □ 
community as an open space resource.

e. Other impacts: □ □ 

12. Impact on Critical Environmental Areas
�NO □YESThe proposed action may be located within or adjacent to a critical

environmental area (CEA). (See Part 1. E.3.d)
If "Yes", answer questions a - c. If "No", f!O to Section 13.

Relevant No, or Moderate 
Part I small to large 

Question(s) impact impact may 
may occur occur 

a. The proposed action may result in a reduction in the quantity of the resource or E3d □ □ 
characteristic which was the basis for designation of the CEA.

b. The proposed action may result in a reduction in the quality of the resource or E3d □ □ 
characteristic which was the basis for designation of the CEA.

c. Other impacts: □ □ 

Page 7 of 10 



13. Impact on Transportation

�NO □YESThe proposed action may result in a change to existing transportation systems.
(See Part 1. D.2.j)
If "Yes", answer questions a - f. If "No", f!O to Section 14.

Relevant No,or Moderate 
Part I small to large 

Question(s) impact impact may 
may occur occur 

a. Projected traffic increase may exceed capacity of existing road network. D2j □ □ 

b. The proposed action may result in the construction of paved parking area for 500 or D2j □ □ 

more vehicles.

c. The proposed action will degrade existing transit access. D2j □ □ 

d. The proposed action will degrade existing pedestrian or bicycle accommodations. D2j □ □ 

e. The proposed action may alter the present pattern of movement of people or goods. D2j □ □ 

f. Other impacts: □ □ 

14. Impact on Energy

�NO □YESThe proposed action may cause an increase in the use of any form of energy.
(See Part I. D.2.k)
If "Yes", answer questions a - e. If "No", 1;0 to Section 15.

Relevant No, or Moderate 
Part I small to large 

Question(s) impact impact may 
may occur occur 

a. The proposed action will require a new, or an upgrade to an existing, substation. D2k □ □ 

b. The proposed action will require the creation or extension of an energy transmission Dlf, □ □ 

or supply system to serve more than 50 single or two-family residences or to serve a Dlq,D2k 
commercial or industrial use.

c. The proposed action may utilize more than 2,500 MWhrs per year of electricity. D2k □ □ 

d. The proposed action may involve heating and/or cooling of more than 100,000 square Dig □ □ 

feet of building area when completed.
e. Other Impacts:

15. Impact on Noise, Odor, and Light
�NO 0YES The proposed action may result in an increase in noise, odors, or outdoor lighting. 

(See Part I. D.2.m., n., and o.)
If "Yes", answer questions a - f. If "No", f!O to Section 16.

Relevant No,or Moderate 
Part I small to large 

Question(s) impact impact may 
may occur occur 

a. The proposed action may produce sound above noise levels established by local D2m □ □ 

regulation.

b. The proposed action may result in blasting within 1,500 feet of any residence, D2m, Eld □ □ 

hospital, school, licensed day care center, or nursing home.
c. The proposed action may result in routine odors for more than one hour per day. D2o □ □ 

Page 8 oflO 



d. The proposed action may result in light shining onto adjoining properties. D2n □ □ 

e. The proposed action may result in lighting creating sky-glow brighter than existing D2n, Ela □ □ 

area conditions.

f. Other impacts: □ □ 

16. Impact on Human Health

�NO □YESThe proposed action may have an impact on human health from exposure
to new or existing sources of contaminants. (See Part 1.D.2.q., E.1. d. f. g. and h.)

If "Yes", answer questions a - m. If "No", KO to Section 17.
Relevant No,or Moderate 

Part I small to large 
Question(s) impact impact may 

may cccur occur 

a. The proposed action is located within 1500 feet of a school, hospital, licensed day Eld □ □ 

care center, group home, nursing home or retirement communitv.

b. The site of the proposed action is currently undergoing remediation. Elg, Elh □ □ 

c. There is a completed emergency spill remediation, or a completed environmental site Elg, Elh □ □ 

remediation on, or adjacent to, the site of the proposed action.

d. The site of the action is subject to an institutional control limiting the use of the Elg,Elh □ □ 

property (e.g., easement or deed restriction).

e. The proposed action may affect institutional control measures that were put in place Elg,Elh □ □ 

to ensure that the site remains protective of the environment and human health.

f. The proposed action has adequate control measures in place to ensure that future D2t □ □ 

generation, treatment and/or disposal of hazardous wastes will be protective of the
environment and human health.

g. The proposed action involves construction or modification of a solid waste D2q, Elf □ □ 

management facility.

h. The proposed action may result in the unearthing of solid or hazardous waste. D2q, Elf □ □ 

i. The proposed action may result in an increase in the rate of disposal, or processing, of D2r, D2s □ □ 

solid waste.

j. The proposed action may result in excavation or other disturbance within 2000 feet of Elf, Elg □ □ 

a site used for the disposal of solid or hazardous waste. Elh 

k. The proposed action may result in the migration of explosive gases from a landfill Elf,Elg □ □ 

site to adjacent off site structures.

I. The proposed action may result in the release of contaminated leachate from the D2s, Elf, □ □ 

project site. D2r 

m. Other impacts:

Page 9 oflO 



17. Consistency with Community Plans

�NO □YESThe proposed action is not consistent with adopted land use plans.
(See Part 1. C.l, C.2. and C.3.)
If "Yes", answer questions a - h. If "No", go to Section 18.

Relevant No, or Moderate 
Part I small to large 

Question(s) impact impact may 
may occur occur 

a. The proposed action's land use components may be different from, or in sharp C2, C3, Dia □ □ 

contrast to, current surrounding land use pattern(s). Ela, Elb 

b. The proposed action will cause the permanent population of the city, town or village C2 □ □ 

in which the project is located to grow by more than 5%.

c. The proposed action is inconsistent with local land use plans or zoning regulations. C2,C2,C3 □ □ 

d. The proposed action is inconsistent with any County plans, or other regional land use C2,C2 □ □ 

plans.

e. The proposed action may cause a change in the density of development that is not C3,Dlc, □ □ 

supported by existing infrastructure or is distant from existing infrastructure. Did, Dlf, 
Did, Elb 

f. The proposed action is located in an area characterized by low density development C4,D2c,D2d □ □ 

that will require new or expanded public infrastructure. D2j 

g. The proposed action may induce secondary development impacts ( e.g., residential or C2a □ □ 

commercial development not included in the proposed action)

h. Other: □ □ 

18. Consistency with Community Character

□YESThe proposed project is inconsistent with the existing community character. �NO 
(See Part 1. C.2, C.3, D.2, E.3)

If "Yes", answer questions a -g If "No", proceed to Part 3.
Relevant No,or Moderate 

Part I small to large 
Question(s) impact impact may 

may occur occur 

a. The proposed action may replace or eliminate existing facilities, structures, or areas E3e, E3f, E3g □ □ 

of historic importance to the community.

b. The proposed action may create a demand for additional community services ( e.g. C4 □ □ 

schools, police and fire)

c. The proposed action may displace affordable or low-income housing in an area where C2, C3, Dl f □ □ 

there is a shortage of such housing. Dig, Ela 

d. The proposed action may interfere with the use or enjoyment of officially recognized C2,E3 □ □ 

or designated public resources.

e. The proposed action is inconsistent with the predominant architectural scale and C2,C3 □ □ 

character.

f. Proposed action is inconsistent with the character of the existing natural landscape. C2,C3 □ □ 

Ela, Elb 
E2g,E2h 

g. Other impacts: □ □ 

PRINT FULL FORM Page 10 oflO 



Full Environmental Assessment Form 

Agency Use Only [IfApplicable] 
Project : ! BO Energy 

Date: I=! ====12/0=3/1=8======: 

Part 3 - Evaluation of the Magnitude and Importance of Project Impacts 
and 

Determination of Significance 

Part 3 provides the reasons in support of the determination of significance. The lead agency must complete Part 3 for every question 
in Part 2 where the impact has been identified as potentially moderate to large or where there is a need to explain why a particular 
element of the proposed action will not, or may, result in a significant adverse environmental impact. 

Based on the analysis in Part 3, the lead agency must decide whether to require an environmental impact statement to further assess 
the proposed action or whether available information is sufficient for the lead agency to conclude that the proposed action will not 
have a significant adverse environmental impact. By completing the certification on the next page, the lead agency can complete its 
determination of significance. 

Reasons Supporting This Determination: 
To complete this section: 

• Identify the impact based on the Part 2 responses and describe its magnitude. Magnitude considers factors such as severity,
size or extent of an impact.

• Assess the importance of the impact. Importance relates to the geographic scope, duration, probability of the impact
occurring, number of people affected by the impact and any additional environmental consequences if the impact were to
occur.

• The assessment should take into consideration any design element or project changes.
• Repeat this process for each Part 2 question where the impact has been identified as potentially moderate to large or where

there is a need to explain why a particular element of the proposed action will not, or may, result in a significant adverse
environmental impact.

• Provide the reason(s) why the impact may, or will not, result in a significant adverse environmental impact
• For Conditional Negative Declarations identify the specific condition(s) imposed that will modify the proposed action so that

no significant adverse environmental impacts will result.
• Attach additional sheets, as needed.

1. Impact on Land - Proposed action may involve construction on, or physical alteration of the land surface of the proposed site.

Yes - There will be construction on the land surface of the proposed site. Any construction may result in the alteration of the land surface, but 
not to the extent of those listed in questions 1 a trough 1 h. No of Small to Moderate for all. 

7. Impact on Plants and Animals - The proposed action may result in a loss of flora or fauna.

No. The installation of the solar panels will be on the ground surface, with a minimal site disturbance, and is not anticipated to result in a 
long-term loss of flora or fauna. A portion of this site is to be reclaimed prior to the installation of the solar panels, under a separate agreement 
between the Town of Bethel and the New York State DEC, for an area previously operated by the Town as a permitted sand mine. This 
reclamation shall ultimately take place, under the supervision of the NYS DEC, regardless of whether the application before the Planning Board 
is approved or not. The proposed project cannot and will not proceed until such time as the reclamation of the mine is satisfactorily completed. 

Determination of Significance - Type 1 and Unlisted Actions 

SEQR Status: 0 Type I [l] Unlisted 

Identify portions ofEAF completed for this Project: [l] Part I [l] Part2 [l] Part 3 



Upon review of the information recorded on this EAF, as noted, plus this additional support information 

Sile 11lam, a□d 5L!l111Qr:li□g dQCL!me□taliQ□ frQm ll<!□QL!5 ceviewi□g a□d 9Qllemme□lal age□cie::. 

and considering both the magnitude and importance of each identified potential impact, it is the conclusion of the 
the Town of Bethel Planning Board as lead agency that: 

[l] A. This project will result in no significant adverse impacts on the environment, and, therefore, an environmental impact 
statement need not be prepared. Accordingly, this negative declaration is issued. 

□ B. Although this project could have a significant adverse impact on the environment, that impact will be avoided or
substantially mitigated because of the following conditions which will be required by the lead agency:

There will, therefore, be no significant adverse impacts from the project as conditioned, and, therefore, this conditioned negative 
declaration is issued. A conditioned negative declaration may be used only for UNLISTED actions (see 6 NYCRR 617.d). 

□ C. This Project may result in one or more significant adverse impacts on the environment, and an environmental impact
statement must be prepared to further assess the impact(s) and possible mitigation and to explore alternatives to avoid or reduce those
impacts. Accordingly, this positive declaration is issued.

Name of Action: BQ Energy - Solar Installation 

Name of Lead Agency: The Town of Bethel Planning Board 

Name of Responsible Officer in Lead Agency: Daniel E Gettel 

Title of Responsible Officer: Chairman 

Signature of Responsible Officer in Lead Agency: / 
� - Date: 12/03/18 

Signature of Preparer (if different from Responsible Officer) Date: 

For Further Information: 

Contact Person: Bette Jean Gettel, Clerk, Town of Bethel Planning Board 

Address: PO Box 300, 3454 Route 55, White Lake, NY 12786 

Telephone Number: (845) 583-4350 ext 105 

E-mail: bldgdept@libertybiz.rr.com

For Type 1 Actions and Conditioned Negative Declarations, a copy of this Notice is sent to: 

Chief Executive Officer of the political subdivision in which the action will be principally located (e.g., Town/ City/ Village of) 
Other involved agencies (if any) 
Applicant (if any) 
Environmental Notice Bulletin: htto://www.dec.nx.2:ov/enb/enb.html 

PRINT FULL FORM Page 2 of2 



RESOLUTION 
 

A regular meeting of the County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency (“Agency”) 
was convened in public session on March 9, 2020, at 11:00 a.m., local time, at the Sullivan County 
Government Center, 100 North Street, Monticello, New York 12701. 

 
 The meeting was called to order by Chairman Ira Steingart, and, upon roll being called, the 
following members of the Agency were: 
 
     PRESENT  ABSENT 
  
 Ira Steingart   [     ]  [     ] 
 Suzanne Loughlin  [     ]  [     ] 
 Edward T. Sykes  [     ]  [     ] 
 Howard Siegel   [     ]  [     ] 
 Scott Smith   [     ]  [     ] 
 Paul Guenther                         [     ]  [     ] 
 Joseph Perrello  [     ]  [     ] 
 Carol Roig   [     ]  [     ] 
  
 The following persons were also present: 
 
 Jennifer M. Flad, Executive Director 
 Edward T. Sykes, Chief Executive Officer 
 Julio Garaicoechea, Project Manager 
 Walter F. Garigliano, Agency General Counsel 
        
 The following resolution was duly offered by ___________________________, and 
seconded by ___________________________________, to wit: 
 
 Resolution No. ___ - 20 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE COUNTY OF SULLIVAN INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY APPOINTING PSYCHEDELIC SOLAR LLC 
(“COMPANY”) AS ITS AGENT FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONSTRUCTING 
THE PROJECT (HEREINAFTER DEFINED); MAKING CERTAIN 
FINDINGS AND DETERMINATIONS WITH RESPECT TO THE PROJECT; 
AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN AGENT 
AND PROJECT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE AGENCY AND THE 
COMPANY; AUTHORIZING THE AGENCY TO EXECUTE THE LEASE TO 
AGENCY (“LEASE”), LEASEBACK TO COMPANY (“LEASEBACK”), 
PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT (“PILOT AGREEMENT”) AND 
RELATED DOCUMENTS WITH RESPECT TO THE CONSTRUCTION OF 
THE PROJECT 
 



 WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New 
York ("State"), as amended, and Chapter 560 of the Laws of 1970 of the State, as amended and 
codified as Section 960 of the General Municipal Law (collectively, the “Act”), the Agency was 
created with the authority and power to own, lease and sell property as authorized by the Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on or about February 11, 2020, the Company presented an application to the 
Agency (“Application”), a copy of which is on file at the office of the Agency, requesting that the 
Agency consider undertaking a project consisting of the construction of an approximately 2.7 
MWAC/4.3MWDC solar photovoltaic electricity generating facility that will be interconnected to 
the New York State Electric and Gas (“NYSEG”) electrical grid (“Project”) whereby NYSEG 
customers in NYSEG Load Zone E that are part of the Company’s Community Solar Program will 
receive such electricity at a discounted price to the then current NYSEG price.  The Project is new 
construction and will be comprised of (a) racking to mount the solar modules (such racking 
generally to be pile driven into the ground); (b) solar modules; (c) inverters and transformers to sit 
on a concrete inverter pad and (d) assorted electrical components and wiring.  The solar array will 
be constructed on approximately 14.5 acres which is a portion of (2) parcels of real estate 
consisting of approximately 59.19± acres in the aggregate located at 608-636 Old White Lake 
Turnpike, Town of Bethel (“Town”), County of Sullivan (“County”), State and identified on the 
Town tax map as Section 18, Block 1, Lots 26.1 and 25.2 (“Land”); and 
    
 WHEREAS, it is contemplated that the Agency will (i) designate the Company as its agent 
for the purpose of constructing the Project; (ii) negotiate and enter into an Agent and Project 
Agreement, the Lease, the Leaseback and the PILOT Agreement with the Company (collectively, 
the “Transaction Documents”); (iii) hold a leasehold interest in the Land and the improvements 
thereon which constitute the Project; and (iv) provide financial assistance to the Company in the 
form of (a) sales tax exemption for purchases related to the construction of the Project; (b) a real 
property tax abatement on increased value resulting from improvements to the Land through the 
PILOT Agreement; and (c) a mortgage tax exemption for financing related to the Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the total financial assistance being contemplated by the Agency is less than 
$100,000; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law and the 
regulations adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental Conservation of the 
State of New York (“SEQR”), the Agency constitutes a “State Agency”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, to aid the Agency in determining whether the Project may have significant 
adverse effects on the environment, the Company has presented a Full Environmental Assessment 
Form (“EAF”) to the Agency with respect to the Project for its review; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency has determined that the Project is an Unlisted Action under 
SEQR; and 
 
 
 



 WHEREAS, the Agency has given due consideration to the Application of the Company 
and to representations by the Company that the proposed financial assistance is an inducement to 
the Company to undertake the Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency has considered the following matters as more fully set forth in its 
Uniform Tax Exemption Policies: 
 

A. Permanent private sector job creation and retention; 
B. Estimated value of the tax exemption; 
C. Whether the affected taxing jurisdictions shall be reimbursed by the Company if 

the Project does not fulfill the purposes for which the exemption was granted; 
D. Impact of Project on existing and proposed business or economic development 

projects; 
E. The amount of private sector investment generated or likely to be generated by the 

Project; 
F. Demonstrated public support for the Project; 
G. Likelihood of accomplishing the Project in a timely fashion; 
H. Environmental impact; 
I. Extent to which the Project will require additional services including, but not 

limited to educational, police, transportation, EMS and fire; 
J. Extent to which the Project will provide additional revenues; and 
K. Extent to which the Project will serve the public purposes of the Act by preserving 

permanent, private sector jobs or increasing the overall number of permanent, 
private sector jobs in the State; 

 
; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency desires to encourage the Company to advance the job 
opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of Sullivan County, 
New York by providing the contemplated financial assistance and undertaking the Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Chief Executive Officer has negotiated the Transaction Documents with 
the Company; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Transaction Documents have been prepared by Agency counsel. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE AGENCY AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The Company has presented to the Agency, among other things: 
 

(A) An Application in form acceptable to the Agency;  
(B) Detailed information relating to project costs compared to benefits to the 

community; and 
(C) An EAF. 



Section 2. Based upon (i) the representations made by the Company to the Agency, and (ii) a 
review of a long EAF presented to the Agency, the EAF reviewed and acted upon 
by the Town of Bethel Planning Board, and (iii) related documents, the Agency 
hereby determines that: 

 
(A) The Project is an Unlisted Action under the SEQR.  Based upon the review 

by the Agency of the EAF the Town of Bethel SEQR proceedings and the 
representations made by the Company to the Agency in connection with the 
Project, the Agency hereby finds that (i) the Project will result in no major 
impacts and therefore, is one which may not cause significant damage to the 
environment; (ii) the Project will not have a “significant effect on the 
environment” as such quoted term is defined in Article 8 of the 
Environmental Conservation Law and Regulations adopted pursuant thereto 
by the Department of Environmental Conservation of the State; and (iii) no 
“environmental impact statement” as such quoted term is defined in SEQR 
need be prepared for this action.  This determination constitutes a negative 
declaration for purposes of SEQR.  The Agency’s findings are incorporated 
in the EAF. 

 
A copy of this resolution shall together with the attachments thereto be 

placed on file in the office of the Agency where the same shall be available for 
public inspection during business hours, and notices of this negative declaration 
shall be filed in such offices, posted in such places, and published in such 
publications as shall be necessary to conform with the requirements of SEQR. 

 
Section 3. The Agency has determined that the proposed financial assistance does not exceed 

the sum of $100,000.00 and therefore the proposed action is not subject to a public 
hearing.  

 
Section 4. Based upon representations made by the Company to the Agency, the Agency 

hereby makes, finds and determines as follows: 
 

(A) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary 
and convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of 
the Act and to exercise all powers granted to it under the Act;  

(B) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to (i) acquire a 
leasehold interest in the Land and improvements constituting the Project; 
(ii) appoint the Company as its agent for purposes of constructing the 
Project, and (iii) lease the Land and improvements constituting the Project 
to the Company pursuant to the Lease subject to the Leaseback and the 
PILOT Agreement; 

(C) The Agency has the authority to take the actions contemplated therein under 
the Act; and 

(D) The action to be taken by the Agency will induce the Company to develop 
the Project, thereby increasing employment opportunities in the County and 



otherwise furthering the purposes of the Agency as set forth in the Act. 
    
Section 5. Subject to the Company executing an Agent and Project Agreement in form and 

substance approved by the Chief Executive Officer, the Agency hereby authorizes 
the Company to proceed with the construction of the Project and hereby appoints 
the Company as the true and lawful agent of the Agency to construct the Project on 
behalf of the Agency; with the authority to delegate its status as agent of the Agency 
to the Company’s agents, subagents, contractors, subcontractors, suppliers, vendors 
and other such parties as the Company may choose.  The appointment described 
above includes the following activities as they relate to the construction of the 
Project, whether or not the materials, services or supplies described below are 
incorporated into or become an integral part of the Project; (i) all purchases, leases, 
rentals and other uses of tools, machinery and equipment in connection with the 
construction of the Project; (ii) all purchases, rentals, uses or consumption of 
supplies, materials and services of every kind and description in connection with 
the construction of the Project; and (iii) all purchases, leases, rentals and uses of 
equipment, machinery, and other tangible personal property (including installation 
costs with respect thereto), installed or placed in, upon or under the Project, 
including all repairs and replacements of such property.  This agency appointment 
includes the power to make, execute, acknowledge and deliver any contracts, 
orders, receipts, writings and instructions, as the stated agents for the Agency, and 
in general to do all things which may be requisite or proper for completing the 
Project, all with the same powers and with the same validity as the Agency could 
do if acting on its own behalf.  The aforesaid appointment of the Company as agent 
of the Agency to construct and equip the Project shall expire on September 30, 
2020 if the Transaction Documents have not been executed and delivered. 

 
Section 6. Based upon the representation and warranties made by the Company in its 

application for financial assistance, the Agency hereby authorizes and approves the 
Company, as its agent, to make purchases of goods and services relating to the 
Project and that would otherwise be subject to New York State and local sales and 
use tax in an amount up to $437,500, which result in New York State and local 
sales and use tax exemption benefits ("sales and use tax exemption benefits") not 
to exceed $35,000.  The Agency agrees to consider any requests by the Company 
for increase to the amount of sales and use tax exemption benefits authorized by 
the Agency upon being provided with appropriate documentation detailing the 
additional purchases of property or services. 

 
Section 7. Pursuant to Section 875(3) of the New York General Municipal Law, the Agency 

may recover or recapture from the Company, its agents, consultants, 
subcontractors, or any other party authorized to make purchases for the benefit of 
the Project, any sales and use tax exemption benefits taken or purported to be taken 
by the Company, its agents, consultants, subcontractors, or any other party 
authorized to make purchases for the benefit of the Project, if it is determined that: 
(i) the Company, its agents, consultants, subcontractors, or any other party 



authorized to make purchases for the benefit of the Project, is not entitled to the 
sales and use tax exemption benefits; (ii) the sales and use tax exemption benefits 
are in excess of the amounts authorized to be taken by the Company, its agents, 
consultants, subcontractors, or any other party authorized to make purchases for the 
benefit of the Project; (iii) the sales and use tax exemption benefits are for property 
or services not authorized by the Agency as part of the Project; or (iv) the sales and 
use tax exemption benefits are taken in cases where the Company, its agents, 
consultants, subcontractors, or any other party authorized to make purchases for the 
benefit of the Project, fails to comply with a material term or condition to use 
property or services in the manner approved by the Agency in connection with the 
Project.  As a condition precedent of receiving sales and use tax exemption benefits, 
the Company, its agents, consultants, subcontractors, or any other party authorized 
to make purchases for the benefit of the Project, must (i) cooperate with the Agency 
in its efforts to recover or recapture any sales and use tax exemption benefits, and 
(ii) promptly pay over any such amounts to the Agency that the Agency demands. 

  
Section 8. The Transaction Documents which were negotiated by the Chief Executive Officer, 

are hereby approved as to form and substance on condition that: (i) the payments 
under the Leaseback include payments of all costs incurred by the Agency arising 
out of or related to the Project and indemnification of the Agency by the Company 
for actions taken by the Company and/or claims arising out of or related to the 
Project; and (ii) the terms of the PILOT Agreement are consistent with the 
Agency’s Community Distributed Generation Uniform Tax Exemption Policy. 

 
Section 9. The Chairman, Executive Director or Chief Executive Officer of the Agency is 

hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver the Transaction 
Documents in the form presented at this meeting all with such changes, variations, 
omissions and insertions as the Chairman, Executive Director or Chief Executive 
Officer of the Agency shall approve, the execution thereof by the Chairman, 
Executive Director or Chief Executive Officer of the Agency to constitute 
conclusive evidence of such approval. 

 
Section 10. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized and 

directed  in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required 
and to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay 
all such fees, charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may 
be necessary or, in the opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable 
and proper to effect the purposes of this resolution and to cause compliance by the 
Agency with all of the terms, covenants and provisions of the documents executed 
for and on behalf of the Agency. 

 
Section 11. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of the Agency concerning 

and relating to the adoption of this resolution were adopted in an open meeting of 
the Agency; and that all deliberations of the Agency and of any of its committees 
that resulted in such formal action were in meetings open to the public, in 



compliance with all legal requirements. 
 
Section 12. The Executive Director, Chief Executive Officer or Counsel to the Agency is 

hereby authorized and directed (i) to distribute copies of this resolution to the 
Company; and (ii) to do such further things or perform such acts as may be 
necessary or convenient to implement the provisions of this resolution. 

 
Section 13. This resolution shall take effect immediately. 
 

THE MEMBERS VOTED ON THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Ira Steingart   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Suzanne Loughlin  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Edward T. Sykes  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Howard Siegel   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Scott Smith   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Paul Guenther   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Joseph Perrello  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Carol Roig   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
  
 The resolutions were thereupon duly adopted. 
  



STATE OF NEW YORK :   
    :SS 
COUNTY OF SULLIVAN : 
 
 I, the undersigned (Assistant) Secretary of the Agency DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT: 
 
1. I have compared the foregoing copy of a resolution of the Agency with the original thereof 

on file in the office of the Agency, and that the same is a true and correct copy of such 
resolution and of the proceedings of the Agency in connection with such matter. 

 
2. Such resolution was passed at a meeting of the Agency duly convened in public session on 

the 9th day of March, 2020 at 11:00 a.m. at the Sullivan County Government Center, 100 
North Street, Village of Monticello, Sullivan County, New York, at which the following 
members were present: 

 
     PRESENT  ABSENT 
  
 Ira Steingart   [     ]  [     ] 
 Suzanne Loughlin  [     ]  [     ] 
 Edward T. Sykes  [     ]  [     ] 
 Howard Siegel   [     ]  [ ] 
 Scott Smith   [     ]  [     ] 
 Paul Guenther                         [     ]  [     ] 
 Joseph Perrello  [     ]  [     ] 
 Carol Roig   [     ]  [     ] 
 
3. The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call 

which resulted as follows: 
 
 Ira Steingart   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Suzanne Loughlin  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Edward T. Sykes  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Howard Siegel   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Scott Smith   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Paul Guenther   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Joseph Perrello  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Carol Roig   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 
 and therefore, the resolution was declared duly adopted.    
60400-005  



 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice of said meeting, 
(ii) pursuant to Sections 103a and 104 of the Public Officers Law (Open Meetings Law), said 
meeting was open to the general public and public notice of the time and place of said meeting 
was duly given in accordance with such Sections 103a and 104, (iii) the meeting in all respects 
was duly held, and (iv) there was a quorum present throughout.   
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal on the 9th day of March, 
2020.   
 
          
       ____________________________________ 
                   Secretary  
 
 





























RESOLUTION 
 

A regular meeting of the County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency (“Agency”) 
was convened in public session on March 9, 2020, at 11:00 a.m., local time, at the Sullivan County 
Government Center, 100 North Street, Monticello, New York 12701. 

 
 The meeting was called to order by Chairman Ira Steingart, and, upon roll being called, the 
following members of the Agency were: 
 
     PRESENT  ABSENT 
  
 Ira Steingart   [     ]  [     ] 
 Suzanne Loughlin  [     ]  [     ] 
 Edward T. Sykes  [     ]  [     ] 
 Howard Siegel   [     ]  [     ] 
 Scott Smith   [     ]  [     ] 
 Paul Guenther                         [     ]  [     ] 
 Joseph Perrello  [     ]  [     ] 
 Carol Roig   [     ]  [     ] 
  
 The following persons were also present: 
 
 Jennifer M. Flad, Executive Director 
 Edward T. Sykes, Chief Executive Officer 
 Julio Garaicoechea, Project Manager 
 Walter F. Garigliano, Agency General Counsel 
        
 The following resolution was duly offered by ___________________________, and 
seconded by ___________________________________, to wit: 
 
 Resolution No. ___ - 20 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE COUNTY OF SULLIVAN INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY APPOINTING ROSEMOND SOLAR, LLC 
(“COMPANY”) AS ITS AGENT FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONSTRUCTING 
THE PROJECT (HEREINAFTER DEFINED); MAKING CERTAIN 
FINDINGS AND DETERMINATIONS WITH RESPECT TO THE PROJECT; 
AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN AGENT 
AND PROJECT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE AGENCY AND THE 
COMPANY; AUTHORIZING THE AGENCY TO EXECUTE THE LEASE TO 
AGENCY (“LEASE”), LEASEBACK TO COMPANY (“LEASEBACK”), 
PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT (“PILOT AGREEMENT”) AND 
RELATED DOCUMENTS WITH RESPECT TO THE CONSTRUCTION OF 
THE PROJECT 
 



 WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New 
York ("State"), as amended, and Chapter 560 of the Laws of 1970 of the State, as amended and 
codified as Section 960 of the General Municipal Law (collectively, the “Act”), the Agency was 
created with the authority and power to own, lease and sell property as authorized by the Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on or about February 14, 2020, the Company presented an application to the 
Agency (“Application”), a copy of which is on file at the office of the Agency, requesting that the 
Agency consider undertaking a project consisting of the construction of an approximately 2MW 
solar photovoltaic electricity generating facility that will be interconnected to the New York State 
Electric and Gas (“NYSEG”) electrical grid (“Project”) whereby NYSEG customers in NYSEG 
Load Zone E that are part of the Company’s Community Solar Program will receive such 
electricity at a discounted price to the then current NYSEG price.  The Project is new construction 
and will be comprised of (a) racking to mount the solar modules (such racking generally to be pile 
driven into the ground); (b) solar modules; (c) inverters and transformers to sit on a concrete 
inverter pad and (d) assorted electrical components and wiring.  The solar array will be constructed 
on one (1) parcel of real estate consisting of approximately 50.1± acres located at 191 Rosemond 
Road, Town of Fallsburg (“Town”), County of Sullivan (“County”), State and identified on the 
Town tax map as Section 30, Block 1, Lot 9.4 (“Land”); and 
    
 WHEREAS, it is contemplated that the Agency will (i) designate the Company as its agent 
for the purpose of constructing the Project; (ii) negotiate and enter into an Agent and Project 
Agreement, the Lease, the Leaseback and the PILOT Agreement with the Company (collectively, 
the “Transaction Documents”); (iii) hold a leasehold interest in the Land and the improvements 
thereon which constitute the Project; and (iv) provide financial assistance to the Company in the 
form of (a) sales tax exemption for purchases related to the construction of the Project; (b) a real 
property tax abatement on increased value resulting from improvements to the Land through the 
PILOT Agreement; and (c) a mortgage tax exemption for financing related to the Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the total financial assistance being contemplated by the Agency is less than 
$100,000; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law and the 
regulations adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental Conservation of the 
State of New York (“SEQR”), the Agency constitutes a “State Agency”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, to aid the Agency in determining whether the Project may have significant 
adverse effects on the environment, the Company has presented a Full Environmental Assessment 
Form (“EAF”) to the Agency with respect to the Project for its review; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency has given due consideration to the Application of the Company 
and to representations by the Company that the proposed financial assistance is an inducement to 
the Company to undertake the Project; and 
 
  
 



 WHEREAS, the Agency has considered the following matters as more fully set forth in its 
Uniform Tax Exemption Policies: 
 

A. Permanent private sector job creation and retention; 
B. Estimated value of the tax exemption; 
C. Whether the affected taxing jurisdictions shall be reimbursed by the Company if 

the Project does not fulfill the purposes for which the exemption was granted; 
D. Impact of Project on existing and proposed business or economic development 

projects; 
E. The amount of private sector investment generated or likely to be generated by the 

Project; 
F. Demonstrated public support for the Project; 
G. Likelihood of accomplishing the Project in a timely fashion; 
H. Environmental impact; 
I. Extent to which the Project will require additional services including, but not 

limited to educational, police, transportation, EMS and fire; 
J. Extent to which the Project will provide additional revenues; and 
K. Extent to which the Project will serve the public purposes of the Act by preserving 

permanent, private sector jobs or increasing the overall number of permanent, 
private sector jobs in the State; 

 
; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency desires to encourage the Company to advance the job 
opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of Sullivan County, 
New York by providing the contemplated financial assistance and undertaking the Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Chief Executive Officer has negotiated the Transaction Documents with 
the Company; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Transaction Documents have been prepared by Agency counsel. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE AGENCY AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The Company has presented to the Agency, among other things: 
 

(A) An Application in form acceptable to the Agency; and 
(B) An EAF. 
 

Section 2. Based upon (i) the representations made by the Company to the Agency, and (ii) a 
review of the EAF presented to the Agency, the EAF reviewed and acted upon by 
the Town of Fallsburg Planning Board, and (iii) related documents, the Agency 
hereby determines that: 
 



(A) The Project constitutes a Type I Action under the SEQR;   
(B) The Project will result in no major impacts and, therefore, is one which will 

not cause significant damage to the environment; 
(C) The Project will not have a “significant effect on the environment” as such 

quoted term is defined in Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law 
and Regulations adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of 
Environmental Conservation; 

(D) No “environmental impact statement” as such quoted term is defined in 
SEQR need be prepared for this action; and 

(E) This determination constitutes a negative declaration for purposes of SEQR.   
 

A copy of this resolution shall together with the attachments thereto be 
placed on file in the office of the Agency where the same shall be available for 
public inspection during business hours, and notices of this negative declaration 
shall be filed in such offices, posted in such places, and published in such 
publications as shall be necessary to conform with the requirements of SEQR. 

 
Section 3. The Agency has determined that the proposed financial assistance does not exceed 

the sum of $100,000.00 and therefore the proposed action is not subject to a public 
hearing.  

 
Section 4. Based upon representations made by the Company to the Agency, the Agency 

hereby makes, finds and determines as follows: 
 

(A) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary 
and convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of 
the Act and to exercise all powers granted to it under the Act;  

(B) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to (i) acquire a 
leasehold interest in the Land and improvements constituting the Project; 
(ii) appoint the Company as its agent for purposes of constructing the 
Project, and (iii) lease the Land and improvements constituting the Project 
to the Company pursuant to the Lease subject to the Leaseback and the 
PILOT Agreement; 

(C) The Agency has the authority to take the actions contemplated therein under 
the Act; and 

(D) The action to be taken by the Agency will induce the Company to develop 
the Project, thereby increasing employment opportunities in the County and 
otherwise furthering the purposes of the Agency as set forth in the Act. 

    
Section 5. Subject to the Company executing an Agent and Project Agreement in form and 

substance approved by the Chief Executive Officer, the Agency hereby authorizes 
the Company to proceed with the construction of the Project and hereby appoints 
the Company as the true and lawful agent of the Agency to construct the Project on 
behalf of the Agency; with the authority to delegate its status as agent of the Agency 
to the Company’s agents, subagents, contractors, subcontractors, suppliers, vendors 



and other such parties as the Company may choose.  The appointment described 
above includes the following activities as they relate to the construction of the 
Project, whether or not the materials, services or supplies described below are 
incorporated into or become an integral part of the Project; (i) all purchases, leases, 
rentals and other uses of tools, machinery and equipment in connection with the 
construction of the Project; (ii) all purchases, rentals, uses or consumption of 
supplies, materials and services of every kind and description in connection with 
the construction of the Project; and (iii) all purchases, leases, rentals and uses of 
equipment, machinery, and other tangible personal property (including installation 
costs with respect thereto), installed or placed in, upon or under the Project, 
including all repairs and replacements of such property.  This agency appointment 
includes the power to make, execute, acknowledge and deliver any contracts, 
orders, receipts, writings and instructions, as the stated agents for the Agency, and 
in general to do all things which may be requisite or proper for completing the 
Project, all with the same powers and with the same validity as the Agency could 
do if acting on its own behalf.  The aforesaid appointment of the Company as agent 
of the Agency to construct and equip the Project shall expire on September 30, 
2020 if the Transaction Documents have not been executed and delivered. 

 
Section 6. Based upon the representation and warranties made by the Company in its 

application for financial assistance, the Agency hereby authorizes and approves the 
Company, as its agent, to make purchases of goods and services relating to the 
Project and that would otherwise be subject to New York State and local sales and 
use tax in an amount up to $875,000, which result in New York State and local 
sales and use tax exemption benefits ("sales and use tax exemption benefits") not 
to exceed $70,000.  The Agency agrees to consider any requests by the Company 
for increase to the amount of sales and use tax exemption benefits authorized by 
the Agency upon being provided with appropriate documentation detailing the 
additional purchases of property or services. 

 
Section 7. Pursuant to Section 875(3) of the New York General Municipal Law, the Agency 

may recover or recapture from the Company, its agents, consultants, 
subcontractors, or any other party authorized to make purchases for the benefit of 
the Project, any sales and use tax exemption benefits taken or purported to be taken 
by the Company, its agents, consultants, subcontractors, or any other party 
authorized to make purchases for the benefit of the Project, if it is determined that: 
(i) the Company, its agents, consultants, subcontractors, or any other party 
authorized to make purchases for the benefit of the Project, is not entitled to the 
sales and use tax exemption benefits; (ii) the sales and use tax exemption benefits 
are in excess of the amounts authorized to be taken by the Company, its agents, 
consultants, subcontractors, or any other party authorized to make purchases for the 
benefit of the Project; (iii) the sales and use tax exemption benefits are for property 
or services not authorized by the Agency as part of the Project; or (iv) the sales and 
use tax exemption benefits are taken in cases where the Company, its agents, 
consultants, subcontractors, or any other party authorized to make purchases for the 



benefit of the Project, fails to comply with a material term or condition to use 
property or services in the manner approved by the Agency in connection with the 
Project.  As a condition precedent of receiving sales and use tax exemption benefits, 
the Company, its agents, consultants, subcontractors, or any other party authorized 
to make purchases for the benefit of the Project, must (i) cooperate with the Agency 
in its efforts to recover or recapture any sales and use tax exemption benefits, and 
(ii) promptly pay over any such amounts to the Agency that the Agency demands. 

  
Section 8. The Transaction Documents which were negotiated by the Chief Executive Officer, 

are hereby approved as to form and substance on condition that: (i) the payments 
under the Leaseback include payments of all costs incurred by the Agency arising 
out of or related to the Project and indemnification of the Agency by the Company 
for actions taken by the Company and/or claims arising out of or related to the 
Project; and (ii) the terms of the PILOT Agreement are consistent with the 
Agency’s Community Distributed Generation Uniform Tax Exemption Policy. 

 
Section 9. The Chairman, Executive Director or Chief Executive Officer of the Agency is 

hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver the Transaction 
Documents in the form presented at this meeting all with such changes, variations, 
omissions and insertions as the Chairman, Executive Director or Chief Executive 
Officer of the Agency shall approve, the execution thereof by the Chairman, 
Executive Director or Chief Executive Officer of the Agency to constitute 
conclusive evidence of such approval. 

 
Section 10. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized and 

directed  in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required 
and to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay 
all such fees, charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may 
be necessary or, in the opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable 
and proper to effect the purposes of this resolution and to cause compliance by the 
Agency with all of the terms, covenants and provisions of the documents executed 
for and on behalf of the Agency. 

 
Section 11. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of the Agency concerning 

and relating to the adoption of this resolution were adopted in an open meeting of 
the Agency; and that all deliberations of the Agency and of any of its committees 
that resulted in such formal action were in meetings open to the public, in 
compliance with all legal requirements. 

 
Section 12. The Executive Director, Chief Executive Officer or Counsel to the Agency is 

hereby authorized and directed (i) to distribute copies of this resolution to the 
Company; and (ii) to do such further things or perform such acts as may be 
necessary or convenient to implement the provisions of this resolution. 

 
Section 13. This resolution shall take effect immediately. 



 
THE MEMBERS VOTED ON THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION AS FOLLOWS: 

 
 Ira Steingart   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Suzanne Loughlin  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Edward T. Sykes  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Howard Siegel   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Scott Smith   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Paul Guenther   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Joseph Perrello  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Carol Roig   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
  
 The resolutions were thereupon duly adopted. 
  



STATE OF NEW YORK :   
    :SS 
COUNTY OF SULLIVAN : 
 
 I, the undersigned (Assistant) Secretary of the Agency DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT: 
 
1. I have compared the foregoing copy of a resolution of the Agency with the original thereof 

on file in the office of the Agency, and that the same is a true and correct copy of such 
resolution and of the proceedings of the Agency in connection with such matter. 

 
2. Such resolution was passed at a meeting of the Agency duly convened in public session on 

the 9th day of March, 2020 at 11:00 a.m. at the Sullivan County Government Center, 100 
North Street, Village of Monticello, Sullivan County, New York, at which the following 
members were present: 

 
     PRESENT  ABSENT 
  
 Ira Steingart   [     ]  [     ] 
 Suzanne Loughlin  [     ]  [     ] 
 Edward T. Sykes  [     ]  [     ] 
 Howard Siegel   [     ]  [     ] 
 Scott Smith   [     ]  [     ] 
 Paul Guenther                         [     ]  [     ] 
 Joseph Perrello  [     ]  [     ] 
 Carol Roig   [     ]  [     ] 
 
 
3. The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call 

which resulted as follows: 
 
 Ira Steingart   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Suzanne Loughlin  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Edward T. Sykes  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Howard Siegel   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Scott Smith   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Paul Guenther   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Joseph Perrello  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Carol Roig   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 
 and therefore, the resolution was declared duly adopted.    
60400-009v2  



 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice of said meeting, 
(ii) pursuant to Sections 103a and 104 of the Public Officers Law (Open Meetings Law), said 
meeting was open to the general public and public notice of the time and place of said meeting 
was duly given in accordance with such Sections 103a and 104, (iii) the meeting in all respects 
was duly held, and (iv) there was a quorum present throughout.   
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal on the 9th day of March, 
2020.   
 
          
       ____________________________________ 
                   Secretary  
 
 



From: Henry Zabatta
To: Jennifer Flad
Subject: Sullivan Resorts, LLC PROJECT #48011804C
Date: Friday, February 28, 2020 9:42:14 AM

Jennifer
We have had discussions with the NYSDEC that indicate that we need to perform additional work on
the property during the warmer weather. As such, we are requesting an extension to our IDA project
to September 30, 2020.
Please let me know if this request is feasible.
Thanks
Henry

mailto:henry@icappelli.com
mailto:jflad@sullivanida.com


From: Henry Zabatta
To: Jennifer Flad
Subject: RE: Sullivan Resorts, LLC PROJECT #48011804C
Date: Tuesday, March 3, 2020 11:10:59 AM

Jen
We need to further grade and stabilize the soil. We need to backfill areas that were excavated to
remove Underground Storage Tanks and shore up an existing road. It may also be required to add
more monitoring wells. There is also an additional building to be demolished. I hope this is
satisfactory.
Thanks
Henry

mailto:henry@icappelli.com
mailto:jflad@sullivanida.com


 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

A regular meeting of the County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency (“Agency”) was 
convened in public session on March 9, 2020, at 11:00 a.m., local time, at the Sullivan County 
Government Center, 100 North Street, Monticello, New York 12701. 

 
 The meeting was called to order by Chairman Ira Steingart, and, upon roll being called, the 
following members of the Agency were: 
 
     PRESENT  ABSENT 
  
 Ira Steingart   [     ]  [     ] 
 Suzanne Loughlin  [     ]  [     ] 
 Edward T. Sykes  [     ]  [     ] 
 Howard Siegel   [     ]  [     ] 
 Scott Smith   [     ]  [     ] 
 Paul Guenther                         [     ]  [     ] 
 Joseph Perrello  [     ]  [     ] 
 Carol Roig   [     ]  [     ] 
  
 The following persons were also present: 
 
 Jennifer M. Flad, Executive Director 
 Edward T. Sykes, Chief Executive Officer 
 Julio Garaicoechea, Project Manager 
 Walter F. Garigliano, Agency General Counsel 
        
 The following resolution was duly offered by ___________________________, and 
seconded by ___________________________________, to wit: 
 
 Resolution No. ___ - 20 
         

RESOLUTION EXTENDING THE SALES TAX ABATEMENT PERIOD FOR 
THE SULLIVAN RESORTS, LLC (“COMPANY”) PROJECT FROM APRIL 1, 
2020 THROUGH AND INCLUDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 

 
 WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New 
York ("State"), as amended, and Chapter 560 of the Laws of 1970 of the State, as amended and 
codified as Section 960 of the General Municipal Law (collectively, the “Act”), the Agency was 
created with the authority and power to own, lease and sell property as authorized by the Act; and 
 

WHEREAS, on or about February 1 2019, the Agency closed a lease/leaseback transaction 
with the Company consisting of the (i) the demolition of unsafe structures and environmental 
remediation, located on approximately six (6) parcels of land containing in the aggregate 
approximately 582.61 acres located along New York State Routes 17 and 52 and Clements Road 
within the Town or Village of Liberty, Sullivan County, New York and being comprised of all or a 
portion of the commonly  known Grossinger’s Resort Hotel, all as more particularly identified as all 



 

60400-003 
 

or a portion of tax map numbers 23.-1-87, 23.-1-112.3, 29.-2-3, 29.-2-7, 30.-1-1.1, and 125.-1-1.2 
(collectively, the "Land") and the existing buildings or structures located thereon (collectively, the 
"Existing Improvements"), (ii) the demolition of certain of the Existing Improvements (the "Building 
Demolition"), (iii) the construction, reconstruction, renovation and/or repair of water and sewer 
infrastructure located on the Land (the “Infrastructure Improvements"), and the construction, 
reconstruction, renovation and/or repair of roadway and drainage infrastructure located on the Land; 
(iv) the construction, reconstruction, renovation and/or repair of lighting, electricity and connectivity 
infrastructures on the Land and the development of infrastructure; and (v) the acquisition and 
installation by the Company in and around the Existing Improvements, the Building Demolition and 
the Infrastructure Improvements of certain items of equipment and other tangible personal property; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, on or about August 1, 2018, the Agency and the Company entered into a Master 
Development and Agent Agreement pursuant to which the Agency designated the Company its agent 
(“Agent Agreement”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, contemporaneously with the execution of the Agent Agreement, the Agency 
delivered to the Company a Sales Tax Exemption Letter, which letter will expire; and  
   
 WHEREAS, by email, February 28, 2020, the Company requested that the sales tax abatement 
period be extended to continue the construction of the Project. 
   
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the sales tax abatement period for the Project 
be, and hereby is, extended from April 1, 2020 through and including September 30, 2020. 
 
 The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call, 
which resulted as follows: 
 
 Ira Steingart   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Suzanne Loughlin  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Edward T. Sykes  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Howard Siegel   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Scott Smith   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Paul Guenther   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Joseph Perrello  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Carol Roig   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
   
 The resolution was thereupon duly adopted. 



NoURLProvided.pdf[1/7/2020 2:29:10 PM]

Styling and
Annotations

0 Styling

0 Annotations

1/7/2020 2:29:10 PM

Compare Results

Total Changes

10
Text only comparison

Content

7 Replacements

1 Insertion

2 Deletions

Go to First Change (page 1)

Old File:

BC Report.pdf

10 pages (2.18 MB)
10/30/2019 4:09:44 PM

versus

New File:

BC ReportREVISED.pdf

10 pages (1.99 MB)
1/2/2020 8:55:08 PM



Doetsch Family III LLC 
Application to County of Sullivan 

Industrial Development Agency for 
Financial Assistance for 

Seminary Suites 
Lodging Project 

 

Benefit/Cost Analysis 
Prepared by: 

Shepstone Management Company, Inc. 
Planning & Research Consultants 

100 Fourth Street Honesdale, PA 18431 
(570) 251-9550  FAX 251-9551 

www.shepstone.net 
mail@shepstone.net 

January, 2020

http://www.shepstone.net
mailto:mail@shepstone.net?subject=
http://www.shepstone.net
mailto:mail@shepstone.net?subject=
Text Replaced�
Text
[Old]: "October, 2019" 
[New]: "January, 2020"



Doetsch Family III LLC 
Benefit/Cost Analysis 

 
 

Background: 

Doetsch Family III LLC has applied for financial assistance for the development of two 

related properties in the Town of Delaware (Tax Map Parcels 14-5-29 and 15-2-1). The 
project involves the conversion of a two structures on the latter parcel into an eight-unit 

lodging enterprise called Seminary Suites with parking on the opposite side of Route 97. 

The two structures include the original Callicoon Hospital (pictured below and on cover) 

plus an adjoining former office building of the two doctors who served the facility. 

 

It is estimated $975,000 will be invested, including approximately $600,000 in improving 
the property, of which an estimated $360,000 will represent sales taxable materials 

costs associated with the renovation project. There will also be an estimated $100,000 

invested in furniture, fixtures and equipment that will be sales taxable. The real property 

improvements will, at an 95.75% equalization rate and with other adjustments, yield an 

estimated $450,000 of assessed value). Doetsch Family III LLC has applied to the 

County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency 	 Page  of  1 9
Shepstone Management Company, Inc. 



Doetsch Family III LLC 
Benefit/Cost Analysis 

 
 

County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency (IDA) for real property, mortgage and 

sales tax abatements to assist with bringing this project to completion. 

 

Former doctors’ offices 

New York State law governing IDAs requires "an analysis of the costs and benefits of 
the proposed project."  Shepstone Management Company, Inc. has been requested by 

the IDA to provide such an analysis on an independent basis.  This study is designed to 

compare the economic benefits of the project, including both direct and indirect 

revenues generated for local and state government, against the costs to these 

governments for additional services required. Both direct and indirect costs are 
considered on this side of the equation as well.    

The following is a summary of the findings from this analysis, including supporting 

materials forming the basis for the conclusion reached. 

County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency 	 Page  of  2 9
Shepstone Management Company, Inc. 



Doetsch Family III LLC 
Benefit/Cost Analysis 

 
 

Methods and Assumptions: 

The following methods and assumptions were employed for this analysis of this project: 

1) The construction/rehabilitation aspect of the project involves an estimated 

$460,000 in sales taxable material and equipment purchases, the former 

amounting to $360,000 or 60% of construction and the latter being an estimated 

$100,000 for furniture, fixtures and equipment (FF&E) at a projected cost of 
$12,500 per room based on adjusted HVS Survey of Hotel Development Costs 

figures. 

2) It is assumed, for purposes of this analysis, 

that all construction activities will occur in 
2019.  It is further assumed that the IDA will 

approve a PILOT Agreement under the IDA’s 

Uniform Tax Exemption Policy Tourism 

Industry Program, the PILOT to apply to the 

estimated costs of developing the real 
property times the 95.75% equalization rate 

for the Town of Delaware. The PILOT 

schedule is detailed in the table to the right. 

3) It is assumed there will be a $450,000 
mortgage to which mortgage tax abatement 

will apply. 

County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency 	 Page  of  3 9
Shepstone Management Company, Inc. 

http://www.sullivanida.com/uniform-tax-exempt-policy/
http://www.sullivanida.com/uniform-tax-exempt-policy/


Doetsch Family III LLC 
Benefit/Cost Analysis 

 
 

4) It is not anticipated the Doetsch Family III LLC project will create any jobs in 

Sullivan County. 

5) Because no new employees are anticipated, there will be no significant additional 

annual costs to local government for providing highway maintenance and other 

non-educational services in the Town of Delaware. 

  

  

6) Likewise, because there will be no new employees, no school costs are 

anticipated. 

7) Sales taxes attributable to the increased buying power generated by the new 

payroll the facility will produce are included among benefits the project will 

County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency 	 Page  of  4 9
Shepstone Management Company, Inc. 

Text Inserted�
Text
"not"

Text Replaced�
Text
[Old]: "1.5 full-time equivalent jobs with salaries averaging $40,000 per year. 5) The additional annual costs to local government for providing highway maintenance and other non-educational services in the Town of Delaware are estimated at $1,694 for each new resident attracted ($4,151 per household). This is based on an estimated county and town tax levy of $4,300,000, divided by a Town of Delaware population of roughly 2,550 persons. It is assumed 25% of employees or up to one person will be new to Sullivan County. Further applying an employment multiplier of 1.50 (the New York State Department of Labor estimated multiplier for leisure and hospitality businesses in New York), the project will produce less than one new household (1.5 jobs x 25% new households x 1.50), with a cost of approximately $4,151 annually in noneducational local government services each. It is assumed, based on the Sullivan County Cost of Community Services Study, that 78.1% or $3,243 per household would be covered from taxes paid by the new residents, leaving $908 per household as the net cost for town and county services. This is the ratio of costs of services to tax revenues for residential development in the Town of Delaware. This is to say every new household, viewed independently of the businesses employing its members, theoretically generates a net tax loss for the community. This strict interpretation provides for a conservative analysis of benefits versus costs, but it is also important to remember the commercial ratables would not exist without the employees required to run the business or residential customers" 
[New]: "any jobs in Sullivan County. 5) Because no new employees are anticipated, there will be no significant additional annual costs to local government for providing highway maintenance and other non-educational services in the Town of Delaware. 6) Likewise, because there will be no new employees, no school"

Text Deleted�
Text
"Shepstone Management Company, Inc. County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency Page 4 of 9"

Text Deleted�
Text
"Doetsch Family III LLC Benefit/Cost Analysis"

Text Replaced�
Text
[Old]: "for its products. The value of costs of services data is limited to analyzing the likely tax impacts of projects, as it is being used in this instance. 6) School costs are based on the 0.48 children per household average for Sullivan County times a total cost (net of state aid) of $18,500 per student, which is the estimated average figure for the Sullivan West School District where the project is located. No more than one additional student is projected." 
[New]: "costs are anticipated."

Text Replaced�
Text
[Old]: "5" 
[New]: "4"



Doetsch Family III LLC 
Benefit/Cost Analysis 

 
 

create, along with sales taxes and room taxes based on 50% occupancy and a 

$300 average room rate per suite (up to four bedrooms in size). 

8) Cash flow streams from benefits and costs are net present valued using a 

discount rate of 2.49% (current interest rate on the public debt). Net present 

value figures include actual costs of abatements and other costs for 2019 plus 

discounted values for 2020-2039. 

Conclusion: 

This project will generate costs of $126,135 in mortgage, real property and sales tax 
abatements over the period of the standard PILOT agreement plus five years. Net 

present valued this equates to a total cost of $114,752. 

The project benefits consist of the new real property taxes that will be generated 

($135,190), the sales taxes from operations ($633,248) and hotel occupancy taxes  
($395,780) which, at net present value, total $1,164,219 combined over the analysis 

period. 

This yields a positive benefit/cost ratio of 10.15 to 1.00. 

County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency 	 Page  of  5 9
Shepstone Management Company, Inc. 

http://www.treasurydirect.gov/govt/rates/pd/avg/avg.htm
Text Replaced�
Text
[Old]: "There are an additional estimated $19,473 of school costs and $9,101 of highway and related costs over this same period (net present valued), bringing total costs to $143,326. The project benefits consist of the new real property taxes that will be generated ($135,190), the payroll gains ($412,723), the sales taxes from those payroll gains ($33,018), the sales taxes from operations ($633,248) and hotel occupancy taxes ($395,780) which, at net present value, total $1,609,959" 
[New]: "The project benefits consist of the new real property taxes that will be generated ($135,190), the sales taxes from operations ($633,248) and hotel occupancy taxes ($395,780) which, at net present value, total $1,164,219"

Text Replaced�
Text
[Old]: "11.23." 
[New]: "10.15 to 1.00."

Text Replaced�
Text
[Old]: "6" 
[New]: "5"



Doetsch Family III LLC 
Benefit/Cost Analysis 

 
 

 

County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency 	 Page  of  6 9
Shepstone Management Company, Inc. 



Doetsch Family III LLC 
Benefit/Cost Analysis 

 
 

County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency 	 Page  of  7 9
Shepstone Management Company, Inc. 



Doetsch Family III LLC 
Benefit/Cost Analysis 

 
 

 

County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency 	 Page  of  8 9
Shepstone Management Company, Inc. 



Doetsch Family III LLC 
Benefit/Cost Analysis 

 
 

County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency 	 Page  of  9 9
Shepstone Management Company, Inc. 



 
COUNTY  OF SULLIVAN INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

 
PROCUREMENT POLICY 

  
A.  Introduction 

  
1. Scope – In accordance with Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law 

(the “IDA Act”), Section 104-b of the General Municipal Law, and the 
Public Authorities Accountability Act of 2005, the County of Sullivan 
Industrial Development Agency is required adopt procurement policies 
which will apply to the procurement of goods and services not subject to 
the competitive bidding requirements of Section 103 of the GML and paid 
for by an IDA for its own use and account. 

 
2.  Purpose – Pursuant to Section 104-b of the GML, the primary objectives 

of this policy are to assure the prudent and economical use of public 
monies in the best interests of the taxpayers of a political subdivision or 
district, to facilitate the acquisition of goods and services of maximum 
quality at the lowest possible cost under the circumstances and to guard 
against favoritism, improvidence, extravagance, fraud and corruption. 

  
 B. Procurement Policy 
  

1.  Determination Required – Prior to commencing any procurement of 
goods and services, the Executive Director or an authorized designee shall 
prepare a written statement setting forth the basis for (1) the determination 
that competitive bidding is not required for such procurement, and if 
applicable (2) the determination that such procurement is not subject to 
any requirements set forth in this policy. Such written statements shall be 
maintained by the Executive Director or such authorized designee in a 
specially designated procurement file. 

 
2. Procedure for determining whether Procurements are subject to 

Competitive Bidding – The procedure for determining whether a 
procurement of goods and services is subject to competitive bidding shall 
be as follows: 

  
a. The Executive Director or an authorized designee shall make the 

initial determination as to whether competitive bidding is required. 
This determination will be based on Section 103 of the GML 
which requires competitive bidding for expenditures of (1) more 
than $35,000 for the performance of any public works contract 
(services, labor or construction), and (2) more than $20,000 for any 
purchase contract (acquisition of commodities, materials, supplies 
or equipment). 

1 
 



 
b. The Executive Director or such authorized designee shall review 

the purchase request against prior years’ expenditures and a good 
faith effort will be made to determine whether it is known or can 
reasonably be expected that the aggregate purchases of a similar 
nature will exceed the above competitive bidding procedures shall 
be followed for said expenditure. 

 
c. The Executive Director or such authorized designee shall present 

any legal issues regarding the applicability of the competitive 
bidding requirements stated herein to the Agency’s Counsel. 

  
3. Methods of Competition to be used for Non-Bid Procurements and 

Procurements Exempt by Statute – Alternative proposals or quotations 
for goods and services shall be secured by use of written requests for 
proposals or written quotations, verbal quotations or any other method of 
procurement which furthers the purposes of this Section except for items 
excepted herein (see 9 below) or procurements made pursuant to: 

  
a. GML, Section 103 (3) (through county contracts), or 

 
b. GML, Section 104 (through state contracts), or 

 
c. State Finance Law, Section 175-b (from agencies for the blind or 

severely handicapped), or 
 

d. Correction Law, Section 186 (articles manufactured in correctional 
institutions). 

  
4.  Procedures for the Purchase of Commodities, Equipment or Goods under 

$20,000. 
 
 a. Up to $3,000 The discretion of the Executive Director or         

                           authorized designee. 
                                                             

b. $3,001 - $10,000 Documented verbal quotations from at 
    least three vendors.             
      

   c. $10,001 - $20,000 Written/fax quotations from at least three 
                vendors. 
                                                                                          

5.  Procedures for the Purchase of Public Works or Services under $35,000. 
 
    a. Up to $6,000 The discretion of the  Executive Director or  
                                                             authorized designee.                                                              
 

2 



    b. $6,001 - $20,000 Documented verbal quotations from at least 
        three  vendors. 
       

c. $20,001 - $35,000 Written/fax quotations from at least three vendors. 
                                                                                         

6.  Basis for the Award of Contracts – Contracts will be awarded to the lowest 
responsible vendor who meets the specifications. 

 
7. Circumstances justifying an Award to other than the Lowest Cost quoted. 

  
a. Delivery requirements 
b. Quality requirements 
c. Quality 
d. Past vendor performance 
e. The unavailability of three or more vendors who are able to quote on a 
procurement. 
f. It may be in the best interests of the Agency to consider only one vendor 
who has previous expertise with respect to a particular procurement. 

  
  8. Documentation 

  
a. For each purchase made the Executive Director or authorized designee 
shall set forth in writing the category of procurement that is being made 
and what method of procurement is specified. 

 
b. The basis for any determination that competitive bidding is not required 
shall be documented, in writing, by the Executive Director or such 
authorized designee, and filed with the purchase order or contract 
therefore. 

 
c. For those items not subject to competitive bidding such as professional 
services, emergencies, purchased under city contracts or procurements 
from sole sources, documentation should include a memo to the files 
which details why the procurement is not subject to competitive bidding 
and include, as applicable: 

  
(1) a description of the facts giving rise to the emergency and that 
they meet the statutory criteria; or 
(2) a description of the professional services; or 
(3)  written verification of city contracts; or 
(4)  opinions of Counsel, if any; or 
(5) a description of sole source items and how such determinations 
were made. 

  

3 



d. Whenever an award is made to other than the lowest quote the reasons 
for doing so shall be set forth in writing and maintained in the 
procurement file. 

 
e. Whenever the specified number of quotations cannot or will not be 

secured, the reasons for this shall be indicated in writing and 
maintained in the procurement file. 

  
9. Exceptions to Bidding 

  
a. Emergency Situation – An emergency exists if the delay caused by 
soliciting quotes would endanger the health, welfare or property of the 
County or of the citizens. With approval by the Executive Director such 
emergency shall not be subject to competitive bidding or the procedures 
stated above. 

 
b. Resolution Waiving Bidding Requirements – The Agency may adopt a 
resolution waiving the competitive bidding requirements whenever it is 
determined to be impracticable. 

 
c. Sole Source – Defined as a situation when there is only one possible 
source from which to procure goods and/or services and it is shown that 
the item needed has unique benefits, the cost is reasonable for the product 
offered and there is no competition available. In this situation, a request 
for a resolution waiving bidding requirements, as described above, is 
required. 

 
d. True Lease – Prices will be obtained through quotations whenever 
possible. The award shall be made on the basis of goods and/or services to 
be provided, ability to meet the specifications desired and price. 

 
e. Insurance – All insurance policies shall be procured in accordance with 
the following procedures: 

4 



 
(1) Premium less than $10,000 – documented telephone                                           

quotations from at least three agents (if                                    
available.           

 
(2) Premium over $10,001 –       written quotations/fax or  
              proposals from at least three agents (if available) 
                                                       

f.  Professional Services – This category includes services which 
require special education and/or training, license to practice or are 
creative in nature. Examples or professional services are:  lawyers, 
doctors, accountants, engineers, artists, etc. For the procurement of 
professional services, the procedures set forth in Exhibit B shall 
apply. 

 
10. Minority and Women Business Enterprises – The Agency shall comply 

with all applicable legal requirements relating to the hiring of such 
businesses. 

 
11. Input from members of the Agency – Comments concerning the 

procurement policy shall be solicited from the members of the Agency 
from time to time. 

 
12. Annual Review – the Agency shall annually review its policies and 

procedures. 
 

13. Unintentional Failure to Comply – The unintentional failure to comply 
with the provisions of Section 104-b of the GML shall not be grounds to 
void action taken or give rise to a cause of action against the Agency or 
any officer thereof. 

 
 

 
Approved and adopted this 18th day of May, 2006. 

Modified and readopted this 9th day of February, 2015. 
 

 
 

 

 



1 

COUNTY OF SULLIVAN INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 

AGENCY AMENDED AND RESTATED INVESTMENT POLICY 

I. INVESTMENT AND DEPOSIT POLICY

A. Introduction

1. Scope – This investment and deposit policy applies to all monies and other
financial resources available for investment and deposit on its own behalf or
on behalf of any other entity or individual.

2. Objectives – The primary objectives of the local government’s investment
activities are, in priority order: 

a. to conform with all applicable federal, state and other legal
requirements (legal);

b. to adequately safeguard principal (safety);
c. to provide sufficient liquidity to meet all operating requirements

(liquidity); and
d. to obtain a reasonable rate of return (yield).

3. Prudence – All participants in the investment process and all participants
responsible for depositing the Agency’s funds shall seek to act responsibly
as custodians of the public trust and shall avoid any transaction that might
impair confidence in the Agency to govern effectively.
Investments and deposits shall be made with judgment and care, under
circumstances then prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion and
intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for
speculation, but for investment, considering the safety of the principal as
well as the probable income to be derived.
All participants involved in the investment process and all participants
responsible for depositing the Agency’s funds shall refrain from personal
business activity that could conflict with proper execution of the
investment program or the deposit of the Agency’s funds or which could
impair their ability to make impartial investment decisions.

4. Diversification – It is the policy of the Agency to diversify its deposits and
investments by financial institution, by investment instrument, and by
maturity scheduling.

5. Internal Controls



2 

a. All money’s collected by an officer or employee of the Agency
shall be immediately deposited in such depositories and designated
by the Agency for the receipt of such funds.

b. The Agency shall maintain or cause to be maintained a proper
record of all book, notes, securities or other evidences of
indebtedness held by the Agency for investment and deposit
purposes.

c. The Agency is responsible for establishing and maintaining an
internal control structure to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that deposits and investments are safeguarded against
loss from unauthorized use or disposition, that transactions are
executed in accordance with management's authorization and
recorded properly, and are managed in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations.

6. Designation of Depositories

In accordance with the IDA Act, the Agency shall designate as
depositories of its money those banks and trust companies authorized to 
serve as such pursuant to said law. 

B. Investment Policy

1. Permitted Investments

Pursuant to GML Section 11, the Agency is authorized to invest moneys
not required for immediate expenditure for terms not to exceed its
projected cash flow needs in the following types of investments:

a. Special time deposit accounts;*

b. Certificates of deposit;*

c. Obligations of the United States of America;**

d. Obligations guaranteed by agencies of the United States of
America where payment of principal and interest are guaranteed by
the United States of America;**

e. Obligations of the State of New York;*

* Special time deposit accounts and certificates of deposit are permitted
investments provided that (1) they shall be payable within such time as the
proceeds shall be needed to meet expenditures for which the moneys were



3 

obtained and (2) they are collateralized in the same manner as set forth in Section 
VII (C) below for deposits of public funds. 

** All investment obligations shall be payable or redeemable at the option of the 
Agency within such times as the proceeds will be needed to meet expenditures for 
purposes for which the moneys were provided and, in the case of obligations 
purchased with the proceeds of bonds or notes, shall be payable or redeemable at 
the option of the Agency within two years of the date of purchase. 

2. Authorized Financial Institutions and Dealers

The Agency shall maintain a list of financial institutions and dealers, approved for 
investment purposes and establish appropriate limits to the amount of investments 
which can be made with each financial institution or dealer. All financial 
institutions with which the local government conducts business must be credit 
worthy. Banks shall provide their most recent Consolidated Report of Condition 
(Call Report) at the request of the Agency. Security dealers not affiliated with a 
bank shall be required to be classified as reporting dealers affiliated with the New 
York Federal Reserve Bank, as primary dealers. The Executive Director or 
Chairman is responsible for evaluating the financial position and maintaining a 
listing of proposed depositaries, trading partners and custodians. Such listing shall 
be evaluated at least annually. 

3. Purchase of Investments

The Agency may contract for the purchase of investments:

a. Directly, including through a repurchase agreement, from an
authorized trading partner.

b. By participation in a cooperative investment program with another
authorized governmental entity pursuant to Article 5G of the GML
where such program meets all the requirements set forth in the
Office of the State Comptroller Opinion No. 88-46, and the
specific program has been authorized by the governing board

. 
c. By utilizing an ongoing investment program with an authorized

trading partner pursuant to a contract authorized by the governing
board.

All purchased obligations, unless registered or inscribed in the name of the 
local government, shall be purchased through, delivered to and held in the 
custody of a bank or trust company. Such obligations shall be purchased, 
sold or presented for redemption or payment by such bank or trust 
company only in accordance with prior written authorization from the 
officer authorized to make the investment. All such transactions shall be 



4 

confirmed in writing to the Agency by the bank or trust company shall be 
held pursuant to a written custodial agreement as described in GML 
Section 10. 

 
 The custodial agreement shall provide that securities held by the bank or 

trust company, as agent of and custodian for, the local government, will be 
kept separate and apart from the general assets of the custodial bank or 
trust company and will not, in any circumstances, be commingled with or 
become part of the backing for any other deposit or other liabilities. The 
agreement shall describe how the custodian shall confirm the receipt and 
release of the securities. Such agreement shall include all provisions 
necessary to provide the Agency a perfected interest in the securities. 

 
   4. Repurchase Agreements 
 

 Repurchase agreements are authorized subject to the following 
restrictions: 

  
a. All repurchase agreements must be entered into subject to a Master 

Repurchase Agreement. 
 

b. Trading partners are limited to banks or trust companies authorized 
to do business in New York State and primary reporting dealers. 

 
c. Obligations shall be limited to obligations of the United States of 

America and obligations guaranteed by agencies of the United 
States of America. 

 
d. No substitution of securities will be allowed. 

 
e. The custodian shall be a party other than the trading partner. 

  
C. Deposit Policy 

  
1. Collateralization of Deposits 

 
 In accordance with the provisions of GML Section 10, all deposits of the 

Agency, including certificates of deposit and special time deposits, in 
excess of the amount insured under the provisions of the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Act shall be secured: 

 



5 

 
a. By pledge of “eligible securities” with an aggregate “market 

value” as provided by GML Section 10, equal to the aggregate 
amount of deposits from the categories designated in Exhibit A 
attached hereto. 

 
b. By an eligible “irrevocable letter of credit” issued by a qualified 

bank other than the bank with the deposits in favor of the 
government for a term not to exceed 90 days with an aggregate 
value equal to 140% of the aggregate amount of deposits and the 
agreed upon interest, if any. A qualified bank is one whose 
commercial paper and other unsecured short-term debt obligations 
are rated in one of the three highest rating categories by at least on 
nationally recognized statistical rating organization or by a bank 
that is in compliance with applicable federal minimum risk-based 
capital requirements. 

 
c. By an eligible surety bond payable to the government for an 

amount at least equal to 100% of the aggregate amount of deposits 
and the agreed upon interest, if any, executed by an insurance 
company authorized to do business in New York State, whose 
claims-paying ability is rated in the highest rating category by at 
least two nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. The 
terms and conditions of any eligible surety shall be approved by 
the governing board. 

  
2.  Safekeeping and Collateralization 

 
 Eligible securities used for collateralizing deposits shall be held by the depository 

bank or trust company subject to security and custodial agreements. 
 

The security agreement shall provide that eligible securities are being pledged to 
secure local government deposits together with agreed upon interest, if any and 
any costs or expenses arising out of the collection of such deposits upon default. It 
shall also provide the conditions under which the securities may be sold, 
presented for payment, substituted or released and the events, which will enable 
the local government to exercise its rights against the pledged securities. In the 
event that the securities are not registered or inscribed in the name of the local 
government, such securities shall be delivered in a form suitable for transfer or 
with an assignment in blank to the Agency or its custodial bank. 



6 

 
 The custodial agreement shall provide that securities held by the bank or trust 

company, or agent of and custodian for, the local government, will be kept 
separate and apart from the general assets of the custodial bank or trust company 
and will not, in any circumstances, be commingled with or become part of 
backing for any other deposit or other liabilities. The agreement should also 
describe that the custodian shall confirm the receipt, substitution or release of the 
securities. The agreement shall provide for the frequency of revaluation of eligible 
securities and for the substitution of securities when a change in the rating of a 
security may cause ineligibility. Such agreement shall include all provisions 
necessary to provide the Agency a perfected interest in the securities. 

 
 

Approved and adopted this 12th day of August, 2019. 
 
 

 
60394-006 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



7 

 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

SCHEDULE OF ELIGIBLE SECURITIES 
 

1) Obligations issued by the United States of America, an agency thereof or a United States 
government sponsored corporation or obligations fully insured or guaranteed as to the payment 
of principal and interest by the United States of America, an agency thereof or a United States 
government sponsored corporation. 
 
2) Obligations issued or fully guaranteed by the International Bank for Reconstruction and 
Development, the Inter-American Development Bank, the Asian Development Bank and the 
African Development Bank. 
 
3) Obligations partially insured or guaranteed by any agency of the United States of 
America, at a proportion of the market value of the obligation that represents the amount of the 
insurance or guaranty. 
 
4) Obligations issued or fully insured or guaranteed by the State of New York, obligations 
issued by a municipal corporation, school district or district corporation of the State of New York 
or obligations of any public benefit corporation which under a specific state statute may be 
accepted as security for deposit of public moneys 
 
5) Obligations issued by states (other than the State of New York) of the United States rated 
in one of the three highest rating categories by at least one nationally recognized statistical rating 
organization. 
  
6) Obligations of Puerto Rico rated in one of the three highest rating categories by at least 
one nationally recognized statistical rating organization. 

  
7) Obligations of counties, cities and other governmental entities of another state other than 
the State of New York having the power to levy taxes that are backed by the full faith and credit 
of such governmental entity and rated in one of the three highest categories by at least one 
nationally recognized statistical rating organization. 
 
8) Obligations of domestic corporations rated one of the four highest rating categories by at 
least one nationally recognized statistical rating organization. 
 
9) Any mortgage related securities, as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended, which may be purchased by banks under the limitations established by federal bank 
regulatory agencies. 
 
10) Commercial paper and bankers’ acceptances issued by a bank (other than the bank with 
which the money is being deposited or invested) rated in the highest-short term category by at 
least one nationally recognized statistical rating organization and having maturities of not longer 
than sixty days from the date they are pledged. 



8 

11) Zero-coupon obligations of the United States government marketed as “Treasury 
STRIPS”. 
 



 
COUNTY OF SULLIVAN INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

DISPOSITION OF REAL PROPERTY GUIDELINES 
ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 2896 OF THE PUBLIC AUTHORITIES LAW 

 
SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS 
 

A. “Contracting officer” shall mean the officer or employee of the County of 
Sullivan Industrial Development Agency (hereinafter, the “Agency”) who shall be appointed by 
resolution to be responsible for the disposition of property. 

 
B. “Dispose” or “disposal” shall mean transfer of title or any other beneficial interest  

in  personal  or  real property in accordance with section 2897 of the Public Authorities Law.  
 
C. “Property” shall mean personal property in excess of five thousand dollars 

($5,000) in value, and real property, and any inchoate or other interest in such property, to the 
extent that such interest may be conveyed to another person for any purpose, excluding an 
interest securing a loan or other financial obligation of another party. 
 
SECTION 2. DUTIES 

 
A.  The Agency shall:  
 

(i) maintain adequate inventory controls and accountability systems for all 
property owned by the Agency and under its control; 

 
(ii) periodically inventory such property to determine which property shall be 

disposed of; 
 
(iii) produce a written report of such property in accordance with subsection B 

herewith; and 
 
(iv) transfer or dispose of such property as promptly and practicably as 

possible in accordance with Section 2 below. 
 
B.  The Agency shall 
 

(i)  publish, not less frequently than annually, a report listing all real property 
owned in fee by the Agency.  Such report shall consist of a list and full description of all 
real and personal property disposed of during such period.  The report shall contain the 
price received by the Agency and the name of the purchaser for all such property sold by 
the Agency during such period; and 

 
(ii) shall deliver copies of such report to the Comptroller of the State of New 

York, the Director of the Budget of State of New York, the Commissioner of the New 



York State Office of General Services, and the New York State Legislature (via 
distribution to the majority leader of the senate and the speaker of the assembly). 

  
SECTION 2. TRANSFER OR DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY 
 

A. Supervision and Direction.  Except as otherwise provided herein, the duly 
appointed contracting officer (the “Contracting Officer”) shall have supervision and direction 
over the disposition and sale of property of the Agency.   The Agency shall have the right to 
dispose of its property for any valid corporate purpose. 

 
 B. Custody and Control.  The custody and control of Agency property, pending its 
disposition, and the disposal of such property, shall be performed by the Agency or by the 
Commissioner of General Services when so authorized under this section. 
 
 C. Method of Disposition.  Unless otherwise permitted, the Agency shall dispose of 
property for not less than its fair market value by sale, exchange, or transfer, for cash, credit, or 
other property, with or without warranty, and upon such other terms and conditions as the 
Agency and/or contracting officer deems proper.  The Agency may execute such documents for 
the transfer of title or other interest in property and take such other action as it deems necessary 
or proper to dispose of such property under the provisions of this section.  Provided, however, 
except in compliance with all applicable law, no disposition of real property, any interest in real 
property, or any other property which because of its unique nature is not subject to fair market 
pricing shall be made unless an appraisal of the value of such property has been made by an 
independent appraiser and included in the record of the transaction. 
 
 D. Sales by the Commissioner of General Services (the “Commissioner”).  When the 
Agency shall have deemed that transfer of property by the Commissioner will be advantageous 
to the State of New York, the Agency may enter into an agreement with the Commissioner of 
pursuant to which Commissioner may dispose of property of the Agency under terms and 
conditions agreed to by the Agency and the Commissioner.  In disposing of any such property, 
the Commissioner shall be bound by the terms hereof and references to the contracting officer 
shall be deemed to refer to such Commissioner. 
 
 E. Validity of Deed, Bill of Sale, Lease, or Other Instrument.  A deed, bill of sale, 
lease, or other instrument executed by or on behalf of the Agency, purporting to transfer title or 
any other interest in property of the Agency in accordance herewith shall be conclusive evidence 
of compliance with the provisions of these guidelines and all applicable law insofar as concerns 
title or other interest of any bona fide grantee or transferee who has given valuable consideration 
for such title or other interest and has not received actual or constructive notice of lack of such 
compliance prior to the closing. 
 
 F. Bids for Disposal; Advertising; Procedure; Disposal by Negotiation; Explanatory 
Statement.   
 



(i)   Except as permitted by all applicable law, all disposals or contracts for 
disposal of property made or authorized by the Agency shall be made after publicly 
advertising for bids except as provided in subsection (iii) of this Section F. 

 
(ii) Whenever public advertising for bids is required under subsection (i) of 

this Section F: 
 

  (A) the advertisement for bids shall be made at such time prior to the 
disposal or contract, through such methods, and on such terms and conditions as 
shall permit full and free competition consistent with the value and nature of the 
property proposed for disposition; 

 
  (B) all bids shall be publicly disclosed at the time and place stated in 

the advertisement; and  
 
  (C) the award shall be made with reasonable promptness by notice to 

the responsible bidder whose bid, conforming to the invitation for bids, will be 
most advantageous to the Agency, price and other factors considered; provided, 
that all bids may be rejected at the Agency's discretion. 

 
(iii) Disposals and contracts for disposal of property may be negotiated or 

made by public auction without regard to subsections (i) and (ii) of this Section F but 
subject to obtaining such competition as is feasible under the circumstances, if: 

 
  (A)  the personal property involved is of a nature and quantity which, if 

disposed of under subsections (i) and (ii) of this Section F, would adversely affect 
the state or local market for such property, and the estimated fair market value of 
such property and other satisfactory terms of disposal can be obtained by 
negotiation; 

 
  (B)  the fair market value of the property does not exceed fifteen 

thousand dollars;  
 
  (C) bid prices after advertising therefore are not reasonable, either as to 

all or some part of the property, or have not been independently arrived at in open 
competition;  

 
  (D) the disposal will be to the state or any political subdivision, and the 

estimated fair market value of the property and other satisfactory terms of 
disposal are obtained by negotiation;  

 
  (E) the disposal is for an amount less than the estimated fair market 

value of the property, the terms of such disposal are obtained by public auction or 
negotiation, the disposal of the property is intended to further the public health, 
safety or welfare or an economic development interest of the Agency, the state or 
a political subdivision (to include but not limited to, the prevention or remediation 



of a substantial threat to public health or safety, the creation or retention of a 
substantial number of job opportunities, or the creation or retention of a 
substantial source of revenues, or where the authority's enabling legislation 
permits or other economic development initiatives), the purpose and the terms of 
such disposal are documented in writing and approved by resolution of the board 
of the Agency; or 

 
  (F) such action is otherwise authorized by law. 
 

(iv) (a) An explanatory statement shall be prepared of the circumstances of 
each disposal by negotiation of: 

 
  (1) any personal property which has an estimated fair market 

value in excess of fifteen thousand dollars;  
 
  (2) any real property that has an estimated fair market value in 

excess of one hundred thousand dollars, except that any real property 
disposed of by lease or exchange shall only be subject to clauses (3) 
through (5) of this subparagraph;  

 
  (3) any real property disposed of by lease for a term of five 

years or less, if the estimated fair annual rent is in excess of one hundred 
thousand dollars for any of such years;  

 
(4) any real property disposed of by lease for a term of more 

than five years, if the total estimated rent over the term of the lease is in 
excess of one hundred thousand dollars; or  

 
(5)  any real property or real and related personal property 

disposed of by exchange, regardless of value, or any property any part of 
the consideration for which is real property. 

 
  (B) Each such statement shall be transmitted to the persons entitled to 

receive copies of the report required under all applicable law not less than ninety 
(90) days in advance of such disposal, and a copy thereof shall be preserved in the 
files of the Agency making such disposal. 

 
The Guidelines are subject to modification and amendment at the discretion of the Agency board 
and shall be filed annually with all local and state agencies as required under all applicable law. 
 
The designated Contracting Officer for the Agency is Jennifer Flad, Executive Director. 



This institution is an equal opportunity provider and employer.  To file a complaint of discrimination, write: USDA, Director, Office of 
Civil Rights, 1400 Independence Avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410 or call (800) 795-3272 (voice) or (202) 720-6382 (TDD). 

548 Broadway
Monticello, New York  12701 
(845) 428-7575
(845) 428-7577 FAX

Authority Mission Statement and Performance Measurements-- FY 2019 

Name of Public Authority:  County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency 

Public Authority's Mission Statement:    

The County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency (IDA) was created by an act of the New 
York State Legislature in 1970, as a public benefit corporation of the State of New York, under 
Section 906 of the General Municipal Law, to grant tax abatements and to help advance such 
projects. 

Industrial development agencies were created in New York State to attract and enhance 
industrial and economic development, help create jobs and maintain economic stability within 
municipal or regional boundaries.  Because New York’s Constitution prohibits municipalities 
from making gifts or loans to private companies or individuals, the creation of IDAs provided a 
viable mechanism to accomplish commercial, recreational, and industrial development goals. 
Support of a healthy economy, the creation and retention of jobs, on a local, regional and State 
level is an important policy objective. 

The County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency’s primary goal is to promote economic 
welfare, recreation opportunities, prevent unemployment and economic deterioration, ensure 
the prosperity of Sullivan County’s inhabitants, and promote tourism and trade.   

Date Adopted:  1970.   

List of Performance Goals: 

• To meet all legal requirements of the Agency.
• To review project employment goals and the achievement of those goals.
• To make decisions consistent with the Agency’s mission statement.
• To make decisions that will promote and ensure the prosperity of the inhabitants of Sullivan

County.



This institution is an equal opportunity provider and employer.  To file a complaint of discrimination, write: USDA, Director, Office of 
Civil Rights, 1400 Independence Avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410 or call (800) 795-3272 (voice) or (202) 720-6382 (TDD). 

Performance Measurement Questions: 

1. Have the board members acknowledged that they have read and understood the mission of 
the public authority? 

2. Do the board members affirm its membership, board, committee, and management structure?

3. Has the agency complied with the Public Authorities Accountability Act of 2005 and the Public 
Authorities Reform Act of 2009? 

4. Does the agency conduct business in an environment that fosters transparency? 

5. Does the agency install and uphold high ethical conduct within the entire organization? 

Discussed, reviewed, and approved by County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency 
Board of Directors— (date). 

## 

Authorities must complete this form and submit the entire document on or before March 31 to 
the State Authority Budget Office via email to:  info@abo.state.ny.us 

Authorities are also required to post and maintain their mission statement and performance 
report on their website. 

mailto:info@abo.state.ny.us


1 
 

COUNTY OF SULLIVAN INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
CONFIDENTIAL FY 2019 EVALUATION OF BOARD 
PERFORMANCE 
 
Please check (√) the most appropriate box. 
CRITERIA AGREE SOMEWHAT 

AGREE 
SOMEWHAT 
DISAGREE 

DISAGREE 

Board members have a shared 
understanding of the mission 
and purpose of the Agency. 

    

The policies, practices and 
decisions of the Board are 
always consistent with this 
mission. 

    

The Board has adopted 
policies, by-laws, and 
practices for the effective 
governance, management and 
operations of the Agency and 
reviews these annually. 

    

The Board sets clear and 
measurable performance goals 
for the Agency that contribute 
to accomplishing its mission. 

    

The decisions of the Board 
members are arrived at 
through independent 
judgment and deliberation, 
free of political influence, 
pressure or self-interest. 

    

Individual Board members 
communicate effectively with 
executive staff so as to be well 
informed on the status of all 
important issues. 

    

Board members are 
knowledgeable about the 
Agency’s programs, financial 
statements, reporting 
requirements, and other 
transactions. 

    

The Board meets to review 
and approve all documents 
and reports prior to public 
release and is confident that 
the information being 
presented is accurate and 
complete. 

    



2 
 

The Board knows the 
statutory obligations of the 
Agency and if the Agency is in 
compliance with State law. 

    

Board and committee 
meetings facilitate open, 
deliberate and thorough 
discussion, and the active 
participation of members. 

    

Board members have 
sufficient opportunity to 
research, discuss, question, 
and prepare before decisions 
are made and votes taken. 

    

Individual Board members feel 
empowered to delay votes, 
defer agenda items, or table 
actions if they feel additional 
information or discussion is 
required. 

    

The Board exercises 
appropriate oversight of the 
CEO and other executive staff, 
including setting performance 
expectations and reviewing 
performance annually. 

    

The Board has identified the 
areas of most risk to the 
Agency and works with 
management to implement 
risk mitigation strategies 
before problems occur. 

    

Board members demonstrate 
leadership and vision and 
work respectfully with each 
other. 

    

 
 
 
 
Date Completed:  ___________________________________________________ 


	60400-007 partnership
	60400-003 Sullivan Resorts Res
	03092020 Meeting Docs
	1_IDA Notice and Agenda 03092020
	DATE:   March 9, 2020 - Monday
	COUNTY OF SULLIVAN INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
	MEETING AGENDA
	Monday, March 9, 2020, 11:00 AM


	I. CALL TO ORDER
	II. ROLL CALL
	III. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES
	IV. BILLS AND COMMUNICATIONS
	V. STAFF REPORT
	VI. OLD BUSINESS None
	VII. NEW BUSINESS
	VIII. ADJOURN


	2_02-10-20 Meeting Minutes DRAFT
	3_02-20-20 Special Meeting Minutes DRAFT
	4_03092020 IDA Schedule of Payments
	02102020

	5_02-2020 IDA Report
	ACTIVITY REPORT – FEBRUARY 2020

	6_Psych Solar-BQ Energy Final App with Attachments_opt
	Bethel_IDA_Application Package_V2_CLEAN_2_10_2020
	Pysch Solar_IDA Application_1 Entity_12_20_19.pdf
	BETHEL Full EAF & Neg Dec.pdf

	BQ Energy Final App Attachments

	7_Rosemond - SCIDA Application (2.14.20)
	8_Sullivan Resorts Sales Tax Exemption Extension Request
	Sullivan Resorts, LLC PROJECT #48011804C
	RE_ Sullivan Resorts, LLC PROJECT #48011804C

	9_IDA_Request_Letter_02262020_Veria FTE
	10_Seminary Suites BC Report Compare_opt
	A9R1sqy22a_1m3bugx_70k.tmp
	Local Disk
	NoURLProvided.pdf



	11_CSIDA Procurement Policy Adopted 2-9-15
	12_A&R Investment Policy ADOPTED 08122019
	13_Disposition of Real Property Guidelines_updated 2017
	14_IDA Mission Stmt & Perf Measurements 2019
	15_IDA Eval 2019

	60400-009v2 Rosemond
	Psychedelic Final App with Signatures
	BQ Energy Final App with Attachments_opt
	Bethel_IDA_Application Package_V2_CLEAN_2_10_2020
	Pysch Solar_IDA Application_1 Entity_12_20_19.pdf
	BETHEL Full EAF & Neg Dec.pdf

	BQ Energy Final App Attachments

	Application Signature Page
	Hold Harmless Sig Page

	60400-005 Psychedelic




NoURLProvided.pdf[1/7/2020 2:29:10 PM]


Summary


Shows Replacements


Shows Insertions


Shows Deletions


10
Total Changes







Doetsch Family III LLC 
Application to County of Sullivan 


Industrial Development Agency for 
Financial Assistance for 


Seminary Suites 
Lodging Project 


 


Benefit/Cost Analysis 
Prepared by: 


Shepstone Management Company, Inc. 
Planning & Research Consultants 


100 Fourth Street Honesdale, PA 18431 
(570) 251-9550  FAX 251-9551 


www.shepstone.net 
mail@shepstone.net 


October, 2019



http://www.shepstone.net

mailto:mail@shepstone.net?subject=

http://www.shepstone.net

mailto:mail@shepstone.net?subject=

Text Replaced�

Text

[Old]: "October, 2019" 
[New]: "January, 2020"







Doetsch Family III LLC 
Benefit/Cost Analysis 


 
 


Background: 


Doetsch Family III LLC has applied for financial assistance for the development of two 


related properties in the Town of Delaware (Tax Map Parcels 14-5-29 and 15-2-1). The 


project involves the conversion of a two structures on the latter parcel into an eight-unit 


lodging enterprise called Seminary Suites with parking on the opposite side of Route 97. 


The two structures include the original Callicoon Hospital (pictured below and on cover) 


plus an adjoining former office building of the two doctors who served the facility. 


 


It is estimated $975,000 will be invested, including approximately $600,000 in improving 


the property, of which an estimated $360,000 will represent sales taxable materials 


costs associated with the renovation project. There will also be an estimated $100,000 


invested in furniture, fixtures and equipment that will be sales taxable. The real property 


improvements will, at an 95.75% equalization rate and with other adjustments, yield an 


estimated $450,000 of assessed value). Doetsch Family III LLC has applied to the 


County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency 	 Page  of  1 9
Shepstone Management Company, Inc. 







Doetsch Family III LLC 
Benefit/Cost Analysis 


 
 


County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency (IDA) for real property, mortgage and 


sales tax abatements to assist with bringing this project to completion. 


 


Former doctors’ offices 


New York State law governing IDAs requires "an analysis of the costs and benefits of 


the proposed project."  Shepstone Management Company, Inc. has been requested by 


the IDA to provide such an analysis on an independent basis.  This study is designed to 


compare the economic benefits of the project, including both direct and indirect 


revenues generated for local and state government, against the costs to these 


governments for additional services required. Both direct and indirect costs are 


considered on this side of the equation as well.    


The following is a summary of the findings from this analysis, including supporting 


materials forming the basis for the conclusion reached. 


County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency 	 Page  of  2 9
Shepstone Management Company, Inc. 







Doetsch Family III LLC 
Benefit/Cost Analysis 


 
 


Methods and Assumptions: 


The following methods and assumptions were employed for this analysis of this project: 


1) The construction/rehabilitation aspect of the project involves an estimated 


$460,000 in sales taxable material and equipment purchases, the former 


amounting to $360,000 or 60% of construction and the latter being an estimated 


$100,000 for furniture, fixtures and equipment (FF&E) at a projected cost of 


$12,500 per room based on adjusted HVS Survey of Hotel Development Costs 


figures. 


2) It is assumed, for purposes of this analysis, 


that all construction activities will occur in 


2019.  It is further assumed that the IDA will 


approve a PILOT Agreement under the IDA’s 


Uniform Tax Exemption Policy Tourism 


Industry Program, the PILOT to apply to the 


estimated costs of developing the real 


property times the 95.75% equalization rate 


for the Town of Delaware. The PILOT 


schedule is detailed in the table to the right. 


3) It is assumed there will be a $450,000 


mortgage to which mortgage tax abatement 


will apply. 


County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency 	 Page  of  3 9
Shepstone Management Company, Inc. 



http://www.sullivanida.com/uniform-tax-exempt-policy/

http://www.sullivanida.com/uniform-tax-exempt-policy/





Doetsch Family III LLC 
Benefit/Cost Analysis 


 
 


4) It is anticipated the Doetsch Family III LLC project will create 1.5 full-time 


equivalent jobs with salaries averaging $40,000 per year. 


5) The additional annual costs to local government for providing highway 


maintenance and other non-educational services in the Town of Delaware are 


estimated at $1,694 for each new resident attracted ($4,151 per household).  


This is based on an estimated county and town tax levy of $4,300,000, divided by 


a Town of Delaware population of roughly 2,550 persons. 


 It is assumed 25% of employees or up to one person will be new to Sullivan 


County.  Further applying an employment multiplier of 1.50 (the New York State 


Department of Labor estimated multiplier for leisure and hospitality businesses in 


New York), the project will produce less than one new household (1.5 jobs x 25% 


new households x 1.50), with a cost of approximately $4,151 annually in non-


educational local government services each. 


 It is assumed, based on the Sullivan County Cost of Community Services Study, 


that 78.1% or $3,243 per household would be covered from taxes paid by the 


new residents, leaving $908 per household as the net cost for town and county 


services. This is the ratio of costs of services to tax revenues for residential 


development in the Town of Delaware.  


 This is to say every new household, viewed independently of the businesses 


employing its members, theoretically generates a net tax loss for the community.  


This strict interpretation provides for a conservative analysis of benefits versus 


costs, but it is also important to remember the commercial ratables would not 


exist without the employees required to run the business or residential customers 


County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency 	 Page  of  4 9
Shepstone Management Company, Inc. 



Text Inserted�

Text

"not"



Text Replaced�

Text

[Old]: "1.5 full-time equivalent jobs with salaries averaging $40,000 per year. 5) The additional annual costs to local government for providing highway maintenance and other non-educational services in the Town of Delaware are estimated at $1,694 for each new resident attracted ($4,151 per household). This is based on an estimated county and town tax levy of $4,300,000, divided by a Town of Delaware population of roughly 2,550 persons. It is assumed 25% of employees or up to one person will be new to Sullivan County. Further applying an employment multiplier of 1.50 (the New York State Department of Labor estimated multiplier for leisure and hospitality businesses in New York), the project will produce less than one new household (1.5 jobs x 25% new households x 1.50), with a cost of approximately $4,151 annually in noneducational local government services each. It is assumed, based on the Sullivan County Cost of Community Services Study, that 78.1% or $3,243 per household would be covered from taxes paid by the new residents, leaving $908 per household as the net cost for town and county services. This is the ratio of costs of services to tax revenues for residential development in the Town of Delaware. This is to say every new household, viewed independently of the businesses employing its members, theoretically generates a net tax loss for the community. This strict interpretation provides for a conservative analysis of benefits versus costs, but it is also important to remember the commercial ratables would not exist without the employees required to run the business or residential customers" 
[New]: "any jobs in Sullivan County. 5) Because no new employees are anticipated, there will be no significant additional annual costs to local government for providing highway maintenance and other non-educational services in the Town of Delaware. 6) Likewise, because there will be no new employees, no school"



Text Deleted�

Text

"Shepstone Management Company, Inc. County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency Page 4 of 9"







Doetsch Family III LLC 
Benefit/Cost Analysis 


 
 


for its products.  The value of costs of services data is limited to analyzing the 


likely tax impacts of projects, as it is being used in this instance. 


  


  


6) School costs are based on the 0.48 children per household average for Sullivan 


County times a total cost (net of state aid) of $18,500 per student, which is the 


estimated average figure for the Sullivan West School District where the project 


is located. No more than one additional student is projected. 


7) Sales taxes attributable to the increased buying power generated by the new 


payroll the facility will produce are included among benefits the project will 


create, along with sales taxes and room taxes based on 50% occupancy and a 


$300 average room rate per suite (up to four bedrooms in size). 


County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency 	 Page  of  5 9
Shepstone Management Company, Inc. 



Text Deleted�

Text

"Doetsch Family III LLC Benefit/Cost Analysis"



Text Replaced�

Text

[Old]: "for its products. The value of costs of services data is limited to analyzing the likely tax impacts of projects, as it is being used in this instance. 6) School costs are based on the 0.48 children per household average for Sullivan County times a total cost (net of state aid) of $18,500 per student, which is the estimated average figure for the Sullivan West School District where the project is located. No more than one additional student is projected." 
[New]: "costs are anticipated."



Text Replaced�

Text

[Old]: "5" 
[New]: "4"







Doetsch Family III LLC 
Benefit/Cost Analysis 


 
 


8) Cash flow streams from benefits and costs are net present valued using a 


discount rate of 2.49% (current interest rate on the public debt). Net present 


value figures include actual costs of abatements and other costs for 2019 plus 


discounted values for 2020-2039. 


Conclusion: 


This project will generate costs of $126,135 in mortgage, real property and sales tax 


abatements over the period of the standard PILOT agreement plus five years. Net 


present valued this equates to a total cost of $114,752. There are an additional 


estimated $19,473 of school costs and $9,101 of highway and related costs over this 


same period (net present valued), bringing total costs to $143,326. 


The project benefits consist of the new real property taxes that will be generated 


($135,190), the payroll gains ($412,723), the sales taxes from those payroll gains  


($33,018), the sales taxes from operations ($633,248) and hotel occupancy taxes  


($395,780) which, at net present value, total $1,609,959 combined over the analysis 


period. 


This yields a positive benefit/cost ratio of 11.23. 


County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency 	 Page  of  6 9
Shepstone Management Company, Inc. 



http://www.treasurydirect.gov/govt/rates/pd/avg/avg.htm

Text Replaced�

Text

[Old]: "There are an additional estimated $19,473 of school costs and $9,101 of highway and related costs over this same period (net present valued), bringing total costs to $143,326. The project benefits consist of the new real property taxes that will be generated ($135,190), the payroll gains ($412,723), the sales taxes from those payroll gains ($33,018), the sales taxes from operations ($633,248) and hotel occupancy taxes ($395,780) which, at net present value, total $1,609,959" 
[New]: "The project benefits consist of the new real property taxes that will be generated ($135,190), the sales taxes from operations ($633,248) and hotel occupancy taxes ($395,780) which, at net present value, total $1,164,219"



Text Replaced�

Text

[Old]: "11.23." 
[New]: "10.15 to 1.00."



Text Replaced�

Text

[Old]: "6" 
[New]: "5"







Doetsch Family III LLC 
Benefit/Cost Analysis 


 
 


 


County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency 	 Page  of  7 9
Shepstone Management Company, Inc. 







Doetsch Family III LLC 
Benefit/Cost Analysis 


 
 


County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency 	 Page  of  8 9
Shepstone Management Company, Inc. 







Doetsch Family III LLC 
Benefit/Cost Analysis 


 
 


County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency 	 Page  of  9 9
Shepstone Management Company, Inc. 





		A9R8v76fc_1m3bugu_70k.tmp

		Local Disk

		NoURLProvided.pdf









